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EVERYTHING WE DO IS
DRIVEN BY OUR PURPOSE

Our purpose is
to consistently
deliver value
and reward our
stakeholders
by making a

difference to our
colleagues, our
customers and
suppliers, and
our communities.




DIPLOMA AT A GLANCE

Diploma PLC is an international group distributing specialised
products and services to a wide range of end segments in our
three Sectors of Controls, Seals and Life Sciences.

We are a well-diversified and resilient business and our
decentralised model means our businesses are customer-
oriented, accountable and empowered to deliver.

OUR SECTORS (REVENUE)*

LIS

Caonada

LK

Europe
Australia/other




Our businesses design their individual value-added business models to closely meet the
requirements of their customers, offering a blend of high-quality customer service, deep
technical expertise and innovative solutions. Local cultures are created through our decentralised
management structure but we recognise a set of values that exist throughout the Group and
unite us as Diploma.

MIIAIBAQ

VALUE-ADD IS AT THE WE HAVE A DECENTRALISED BUSINESS MODEL
HEART OF WHAT WE DO  WITH SHARED AND ALIGNED VALUES

Technical expertise : Determined to get better
‘ =7 everyday

moday oibajoug

Service-led propositions Accountability Striving for high standards

Innovative solutions
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15-year EPS CAGR:15%
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HIGHLIGHTS

YEAR DNDEMD 30 SUPTLMEBER 2007

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR QUR STAKEHOLDERS

Organic growth Free cash flow conversion' Our Colleagues
We have worked hard to retain

great talent by engaging
O/ O/ colleagues across the Group. Our
Engagement Index is testament
O O 1o our businesses’ efforts.

Pl B Momar oo 7

Reportedﬁ revenue growth' ~ Net debt/EBITDA’ Our Customers
Responsive customer service is

one of the key ways that our
O businesses deliver value, we are
/ x proud that they are recognised
O ® by their customers.
Ml <2 Ox

Mgl 10T+

Adjusted operating margin’ ROATCE' ' ~ Our Suppliers
During the year, our businesses

have engaged their key suppliers
O/ O/ meaningfully on human rights,
labour laws and the environment
e O ® O through our Supplier Code.
Mol 1754

Maazel High tesrs

Adju_,;,ted EPS growth' . Dividend cover’ ~ Our Communities
As a decentralised Graup,

we want 1o support the local
O communities and causes that
/ x mctter most to our businesses.
O ® We will continue to match our
okl i Mmooz, 20

businesses’ fundraising in FY23.

FY 2022 Fy 2021 % change
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/9%

Colleague Ergageniert Index

"Since beginning a business
relationship with Hercules OEM
in 2003, we have seen a supplier
relationship grow into a true
partrership. Over the years the level
of service has continued to excel.”

Nepture, o Horcuios OEM customer

5/8

Key suppliers idertified

/9%

Irzraase 'ndoratiors 1o charity
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R OUR
STAKEHOLDERS

KEY ELEMENTS OF OUR
LONG-TERM VALUE
CREATION STORY

Qur busiress model

Our strategy

Delivering value responsibly
Sector reviews
Governance

0

MIAIA
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WHAT WE DO

DIFFERENTIATED VALUE-
ADDED SOLUTIONS

Our value-add distribution medel
Jnderping everything we do and
iz the foundation of the Group's
success. We supply proaucts

ond services critical to customer
needs, Our service componrent
builds loyalty and resilience,
pricing powear and Margins.
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WHAT WE DO

SUSTAINABLE ORGANIC
GROWTH STRATEGY

Organic growth is our numer
one priority. All of our businesses
have fantastic opportunities.
We are focused on business
revenue diversification to drive
arganic growth, build scale and
increase resilience. Operating

in fragmented markets, we also
seek to make cormpiermentary
acguisitions 1o accelerate
organic growth.
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SCALING OUR VAL
ADDED MODEL

N
As our businesses grow afitf g
scale, they need to evolve their
operating model to continue to
deliver their value-add customer
proposition. Alongside this, we are
quietly evolving the structures,
capability and culture of our
decentralised Group to support
the businesses on their journey

to scale.

Dislorma PLC Annual Report 2022
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WHAT WE DO

DELIVERING VALUE
RESPONSIBLY

Belivering Value Responsibly,
our £ESG framewerk, puts
environmental ara social
irmpact at the forefront of ocur
strategy and culture. We are
focused on the key areas in
which we can mcke o difference
to cur colleagues, customers
and suppliers, communities,
cnlhareholders.
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

DRIVEN BY OUR VALUE-ADDED BUSINESSES
OUR PURPOSE

Our businesses deliver value-added services

and solutions to a wide range of customers and
end segments. Our value-add compoenent creates
customer loyalty and share of wallet; reputation
and market share growth; and pricing power

and margin.

% Responsive customer service

Our purpose

is to consistently
deliver value
and reward our
stakeholders by

making a difference
to our colleagues,
our customers and
suppliers, and our
communities.




THE GROUP

As a customer-service organisation, our
decentralised approach is central to our success.
The Group has an important role to play in
supporting our businesses.

Build Diplorna ider@;
w by

Governance and execution

L3

WE DELIVER
FOR OUR
STAKEHOLDERS
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CHAIR'S STATEMENT

Our businesses have strong cultures, but

share the same inherent values - they are R
accountable, entrepreneurial and empowered  Board changes
to deliver for their customers. '

[ A e A = D

Very strong financial performance,
excelient strategic progress
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CEQ’S REVIEW

I am delighted with our 2022 financial
performance and strategic progress. The
management team and all my Diploma
colleagues do a brilliant job — thank you.

Very strong results and excellent A very strong financial perforrnance
strategic progress :

Sustainable organic growth strategy:
revenue diversification driving growth,
building scale and increasing resilience

1. Posrtlonmg behlnd hlgh growth end
segments - e s

Renewcble energy cmd mfrcstructure
Organic growth |nvestment L ___ SR T TR L

;_':, B 1 5 Accelerctmg dmgnostics spendmg

S Very strong organic growth driven by
R our revenue initiatives, positive demand
and pricing

2. Geogrophic pene‘trntlon of core
deveioped economies: .o =7

B e L




- o . - - _ US
cnd Europe at Internctlonol Contrcls
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CEO'S REVIEW
CONTINUED

Portfolio discipline

- LJR Electronics (Controls): = o

P e L L L b

A
dest-oe

Scaling our value-added businesses
and the Group
Scaling our value-added businesses

el
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J— mpetencies - ¢

Supply ch
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- Silicone Solutions (Co 3ol

~ Two small boit-ons at R&G (Seals):

mmercial discipline {or pr
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. We have maintained high-teens
margins of

18 9%




Scaling the Group e

Increasing resilience underpins our
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Delivering Value Responsibly: RN IR L SRS LR
embedding into our commercial T S CILRNNCIS S
9 We have grown EPS by T

—

strategy and culture

Johnny Thomson
O/ Chief Executive Officer

sustaining our impressive compounding
track record
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STRATEGY

Building high-quality, scalable businesses
for sustainable organic growth

Compounding
1. Revenue diversification Financial
to drive organic growth Model

‘ Organic
growth

Revenue
growth

Operating ‘
. ‘ Margin
3. Scale our businesses to execute

value-added customer proposition I

! Cash
conversion ‘




1. Revenue diversification to drive
organic growth

Our sustainable growth strategy is focused on revenue
diversification to drive organic revenue growth, build scale and
increase resilience. Operating in a broad range of markets, ali
of our businesses have fantastic opportunities. Our strategy is
focused on growing, diversifying and scaling in three ways:

MIIAIBAD

g
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©
Positioning behind Geographic Product range
high-growth end penetration of core extension to expand
segments developed markets addressable markets |
All of our businesses have We are relatively We extend our product g
opportunities to tap into underpenetrated in our ranges incrementally &
high growth end segments, core developed markets within our businesses @
many of which also have of North America, Europe and ot portfolic level. 3
a positive impact on the and Australia where there §
environment or society. is significant potential to 8

increase market share.

STRONG ORGANIC GROWTH TRACK RECORD:
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ORGANIC GROWTH
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

2. Targeted acquisitions to accelerate
organic growth

Focused portfolio development is key to the sustainability of our
growth strategy. As we grow, it is important that we focus on the
key, scalable business lines that represent our model and which
we are the right owners to grow and scale.

O 02 03

Acquisitions to A disciplined Success factors
accelerate organic approach

growth

T T I Lt e T S R R Lo Torgetattributes

“Our approach to acquisitions Historic M&A spend (£m)
has become more structured
and strategic. This has
expanded our acquisition
pipeline, enabling us to take

482.2

— 186.6
advantage of a busy market
whilst also maintaining our
strong financial discipline.”

78.3
Steve Sargeant, - 75 mr .
< . 1.5 - 201 204 1o

Corporate Development [ T Bl ssm s —

Director

2012 2013 2014 2018 2016 2047 2618 209 2020 2021 2022
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CASE 5TUDY

Windy City Wire:
accelerating organic growth for the
Group

Windy City Wire is a leading value-added distributer of
premium quality low voltage wire and cable.

Acquired in October 2020 for £348m, the business
represented a material strategic step forward, accelerating
organic growth for the Group as a whole. Importantly,
Windy City Wire diversified Controls into the large,
attractive US industrials market and significantly increased
the Group's exposure to high growth end segments.

Since joiriag (I g Coroas s baad baee crien by o
operat e prrit o dosbicd aned th e degh mrestk opd regnents
[SIE Gt iy farreedr it it Lol Ly

o icl-tesrs, i

S ouxpectatiore,

T b ey drivar by mpressive wolu e
vihand opersting woveraze or o well
sted plationm.

ROATCE Operating profit (5m)

2020 2021 2022 2023 20624 2025 209 2020

-~
- 20%
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

STRATEGY IN ACTION:
ACQUISITIONS ACCELERATING ORGANIC GROWTH

Acquisition of Accuscience in Ireland: Acquisition of LJR Electronics in the US:
positioning behind high growth end segments penetrating core developed econormies and product
and penetrating core developed economies. range expansion to expand addressable markets.

[ 4 \
ACCUSCIENCE.O.. LJQ 7
. c NIRRT SO UTING

Characteristics:

Value drivers:

Portfolio fit: ) CitmErr maen
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CASE STUDY

Acquisition of R&G Fluid Power Group in
the UK: penetrating core developed
economies and product range extension

In Aprll, we acquired R&G Fluid Power Group (R&G), o high-
quality aftermarket distribution business for our Seals Sector
in the UK, for ca. £100m.

R&G is a value-added distributor of a diverse range of industrial,
nydraulic and pneumatic products (incuding seals and
gaskets). Its value-added proposition is based on responsive
customer service, technical advice, breadth of stock and
product customisation. Over time, the management team has
built a platform with extensive reach across the UK, including
through censolidating a numiber of regional distributors to
extend geographic and product reach.

Characteristics: Portfolio fit:
waboenalae addded afteranarket distrilbaion Sealsin« GEmmark=t ] s cpe o
T LIK poach T Wyt it eainting
recer provluct ranags UK Seals basnesoes
Erpands add abfe markets
Value drivers: prodact dversdication Lo alatal Seals
- Palh -
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

3. Scale our businesses to execute
value-added customer proposition

Our service component builds loyalty and resilience, pricing
power and margins. As our businesses grow, they evolve their
operating models to continue to deliver their value-add
proposition at scale — how a £10m revenue business delivers for
its customers is very different to a £100m revenue business.

We have created a framework for our businesses to plot their
journey to scale, including defining the right target operating
model of the future, developing the Core Competencies that
underpin it and the capability that will deliver it.

Evolve target operating model

Scaling our
value-added
businesses Core Competencies Capabilities

Core Competencies

Supply Chain Operational Commercial Route to
Management Excellence Value-Add Discipline Market




4., Evolve the Group to support
decentralised delivery

Our value-add distribution model underpins everything we do
and is the foundation of the Group’s success.

MIBIAIAD
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Scaling
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

STRATEGY IN ACTION:
SCALING OUR VALUE-ADDED BUSINESSES AND THE GROUP

Australian Life Sciences: building a scalable Chicago June 2022: sharing best practice
platform for growth and building leadership networks




CASE STUDY

Talent

0

MBIALIA

“Investing in talent is critical to the
sustainability of our growth”

Jill Tennant
Group HR Directer

yoday abajong

cerener Ll ieyes

[RYESAE

: . Firanes -«
TUSTIIROT KOS L Ty levenragirs ths
challerncyirg leke oo EREh i diversity in?
cdifferemtiatar, O denoraatized oo fripa:
fosters loyally urd er g BN Lhie impas

R -

whert o

0
o
=
O
o
b
[+]
+
o
(]
o
<
1]
=
=5
Q
=
1]
]

T e 1L

M sl by 2

Wie mlenid coomea el

ras araT o osracil, skilles

SIUBWAIDIS [BIOUBULY

SErA NG O e vics

BV R G N IO F FONRUNES b R
stal et meats Ty Homoe

UOIIDWIOH| JOYAD)

IS HAISIS I
rdre 1o«
e,

towill siupport fatere

7 LG 7

smcll numbsr of ke mo




STRATEGY
COMNTINJED

5. Delivering value responsibly

Our DVR programme is built on five,
material focus areas and positioning
ourselves for commercial growth with
a positive impact on society and the
environment. Embracing DVR is key
to executing our strategy, fulfilling our
purpose and scaling and managing
our business sustainably.

DIVERSITY, EQUITY
& INCLUSION

COLLEAGUE
ENGAGEMENT

HEALTH & SAFETY DELIVERING
VALUE RESPONSIBLY

Diplormz PLC Annwal Report 2022




By aligning our businesses with our five
focus areas and positioning ourselves for
commercial growth with a positive impact
on society and the environment, we can
play a meaningful role in building a more
sustainable world.

Delivering for our People Delivering for the Environment  Delivering a Positive Impact
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Read about our performance in each of cur focus areos o

on pages 36-47. 2
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Our businesses have established DVR committees and : Read more about our DVR metrics and targets on 2
appointed persons responsible for performance and page 53. "3'.
S

progress against targets.

Read about our DVR governance, responsible business
practices, and policies and procedures on pages 50-57.
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DELIVERING

DIPLOMA DELIVERS FOR
OUR COLLEAGUES

-— e atiamiioe
IR TN F_pl—iﬁfill‘h

L e emEacs am e

Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022




Our colleagues are the foundation of our e o elibeing .

We are reiedtul of the potenticlirmpac trat

business. They deliver value-add to our ok drormnte ord g oetees

customers, execute against our strategy Cortived 1o hold velloing and rsilience

wiorkshops with businesses ard pr

and are essential to our ongoing success. surces ta mark Waild Mentol Hoalts s

sz the Sroup

Our decentrslised Group employs ca. 3,000 In June this year, we brought together We are also ac mveiste of exteral

coll=agues norass rmultiple businessss, ¢ ovid- 1%, political instatility, the

geographies and commiunitizs, This year, we sst o Lvng crinis that may iurther

walcameaa cx. 500 new colleagues through rrpact our o ;

acquisitions. The safety, wellbeing and ~nontsl Fealth,

ergagernant of thase collzagues is our

primary concern andg central 1o how we 1 j2in the Gr'o'.-:p through

aeliver value. : dsition, and ares ple that &7
llecges feel that thei i

S (Jldlpg oo F‘ﬁgﬂg&'l'r‘ﬁrf SLlvEy.

yioday 216a1ong

rmembers of the 5LT in Chicage to
celebrate their hard work and discuss
our strategy. This was the SLT’s first
time meeting in person since the
pandemic and a key opportunity to
strengthen networks, build our culture
and integrate new senior leaders

Developing, attracting ard retaining take
in an couitable ars inclusive ervironment
will supgort our jourrey 10 scale, ardis an

Further casis tarce is oifered l\‘.'u:,,--_;h [
raportart ditferentiator in o challen - -

B eolalas) P-'r

accountab
ST ST A PRI Re T

are: ;;r';u-.‘,]hl or \10 Lhe [witeiotio nalnEt
rclimq Courszling

iz uchty acguisibor:. ) o muniresees where colleagues have sufered
a bereavernent or tragic everdt.,

Bmldlng engaging and fulfilling careers
counitinue to evilve our culture crid
ollecgus ergagermart across the
Cquire neve businesses avery
I consideration to how
ses that join us through
acquisition.

Group intzrral communication is o powsariul
taol for us — our CEC updates ur colleaques
directly thraugh quarterly videos and

of our colleagues are proud to work for
their business

ieformation s shimed uurons businesses and

Sectors *hro_lg%'- our interral newstettes This

YCO7 W mrr dbu—;’d learning rmanagement
‘ currzntly being rolled out

Brilliant leadership
Qurdecertralsed mocel means that cur
Serior Leadership Tearn (5L plays a key
rele e progrossing the culture ang strategy
of the Grauw well o< the performznce ¢ of talent .
. =velopment of talest supports our
af their bus s and Sectors. Gur ST ’ ’ PP . )
‘ L deepens ergagomert ang ik
comprised o Fxecutive tear, the ; 4 X Tp ’ ‘ o ‘5 . b
i . Irmpzertant ot every level o7 Jur DusIiness,
Managing Directors of our businesses and | b EETY o .
- S . Many of our <ollecgues uncerge on the ol
kev Group roles has deronstrated brilliom A .
O . e o training, whethear through sporerticeships
leadership during FY22, continuing <o lock e g
or external certification, Throsgh our DVR
cfler and support our collcagues, serve our -
T = Grogramrme, we e started 1o devzlop
customers and show greot agility ana

;i . . . networks that facilitat= knowledge shoring
resifience cespite geopsiitical and economic ‘ : - -

. - i across certain functions such as Health &
uncertainties,

Satety, Supply Chain Managernant, and HE.
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Engaging our Colleagues

Our vision is for all of our colleagues
to be highly engaged

2022 Highlights

- 86% response rate

— 79% colleague engagement index

- 70% of Group colleagues are
active on our new learning
managerment system

86%

response rate

79%

engagement index

KPI

Fngagement Index

{an externally benchmarked score
from our annual engagement survey}

Target
Maintcin an engagement index
of 70%+

Ongoing Focus

- Build out our learning management
systermn

- Continued focus on wellbeing
and mental health

- HR network to support best
practice

- Continued leadership development

Engaged colleagues perform better. Our
colleagues have great technical expertise
and in-depth knowledge of their products
and markets. In a challenging labour market,
engagement helps us to hold onto that
talent, knowledge and expertise.

“It's really important to us that
we continue to prioritise and
engoage our colleagues across
the Group. Earlier this year we
held our second engagement
survey. The engagement index
was 79% with over 2000
colleagues taking part.”

Jill Tennant,
Group HR Director




5%+

all of our businesses achieved an
engagement index within o range
of 75-85%

Leadership style

75% +2%

2022 75
2021 73

O%

of our colleagues believe that their
work is meaningful, according to our
engagerent survey

88%

of our colleagues believe that their
manager empowers them, according
to our engogement survey

Learning and development

70% 49

2022 70
2021 66

Wellbeing

79% +1%

2022 79
2021 78

CASE STUDY o N
M Seals UK Employee
Working Group

“1 like that | can act on behalf
of my colleagues to voice their
concerns or issues. | also like
that we develop a plan or
response to each issue right
there in the meeting so it gets
sorted straightaway. It's a
great way to communicate as
all the branches of the business
are there together at the
meeting — whether it's a
finance issue, a management
issue, or a warehouse issue.”

Sati Sing,

Warehouse Operative and
member of the Employee
Working Group at M Seals UK

yioday a1baroing



DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Ensuring Health & Safety

Keeping our colleagues healthy, safe and

S een s thatt no one s harmed well is a prerequisite to doing business.

We have a duty of care to any person who
2022 Highlights is working remotely, working at, or visiting
" Fieohn & Sy e a Diploma business.

~ More robust reporting

- Reduced severity rate

- Improvement in potenticl
hazard reporting

- Improved governcnce at business
and Sector level

10.6

LT rate

44,

reduction in severity rate

Action during 2022

R
. '

KPI

Lost time incident (LT1) Rate
(number of lost time incidents per
1,000 employees)

FY23 Target
5% year-on-year reduction in LTl rate

Ongoing Focus
- Build positive mental health

E%

and wellbeing

— Continuous improverment and focus et
on Health & Safety culture of colleagues feel that Health &

- E_nsu're process in place t© reduce Safety is taken seriously in their
risks identified by potential hazard business, according to our Colleague

reporting Engagement Survey




CASE STUDY
North American
Seals

Group performance stats
LT! rate

Severity rate

Patential hazards

yoday o1bainiig




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Promoting Diversity, Equity & Inclusion

Our vision is 1o build o diverse
workforce, where all of our colleagues
feel able to bring their full selves to
work and fulfil their potential.

2022 Highlights

- New Group Diversity, Equity
& Inclusion Pelicy

- Unconscious bias workshops

- Training for Senior Leadership
Teamn on inclusive leadership

- Ethnicity reporting

27%

of the Senior Management Team
are women

KPI
% of wormen on the Senior
Management Team

FY30 Target
Women represent 40%+ of Senior
Management Team

Ongoing Focus

- Succession planning

- Implementing the Diversity, Equity
and Inclusion Policy acrass the Group

- Further learning and knowledge
sharing

We remain committed to better
representation across our Group and
businesses, particularly in management
and leadership positions.

Gender diversity {as at 30 September)

Male  Female Tota!

P,

S IO R SRR

Ethnic diversity {as at 30 September)

Preter

Non- Ethnic rot o
- Tanorty minority______ L8y Toio
PR - 0 : -
O/ o S -

of external hires into the coe sk R
Senior Management Team during the C e mec e e e e o
year were women N T

% of women on SMT

2022 27%
202 24%




Diversity of our Senior Management Team

Gender diversity

Women 27%

Ethnic diversity

Ethnic minority  10%

Frefer not to say  15%

Gender diversity across the Group

Board All employees

Wornen 43%

Wornen 31%

CASESTUDY
International
Women'’s Day
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International Women's day was
celebrated by businesses across the Group
on &th March 2022,

Businesses brought their teams together

at lunches, discussion groups and through
fundraising events to discuss bias and the
challenges faced by women in the workplace.

All colleagues were also given the
opportunity to attend a #BreakTheBias
workshop, which highlighted examples of
uncenscious bias and the role that we can
alt play in tackling it at work.



JERING vALUE RESPONSIBLY
ITINUED

DIPLOMA DELIVERS FOR
THE ENVIRONMENT




We are a Group whose businesses, supply
chain and end users stretch across the globe.
As a distributor, our operational emissions are
relatively modest, and the vast majority of
our emissions will sit in Scope 3.

LJ\ sLlotion of cur Scope 3 ernissions is a
snclertaking in o decentralised
clrs. We are working to do
this ghead ¢f sLbnittirg o net zero target

1o the Science-Sased Targets Initiative (S5BTH)

during “Y23,

The clirnate crisis s uroent and global,
recogriss the \mpou of cur wicer o oTprmT
ard tre rarowng window of cpportunity
o e st ive contribation in tackling
rdtre moral obligation thot
s see the contribaation 1o the
otz ang graseih of our

43 Diplemg PLC Annual Report 2022

Our calleagues are increasingly passionate
about climate change and expect the Group
to drive progress and support thair iritiatives.
There s alec the opportunity 1o dosver

value to our custormers by offering rmore
sustainnble products and solutions, building
our knowledge and expertise, and waorking
te be a more carbor-sffident business that
car sapport their net zere geals,

Ol Sositive IMmPact revenue inftictiees

i SolRsiaatelrs
growth with a positive impact on society
and the environment.

jioday oibaypayg




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Sustainable Supply Chain Management

Management of our supply chain is key
ot oy e . to our broader social and environmental
impact as a Group, and a key part of our

2022 Highlights strategy and commercial proposition. Our

- Active en ith . ' .
o o e ment focus is to work with our suppliers to tackle

- K liers identified and th 1 1
s stortad o o with climate change and reduce our own impact
our Supplier Code through more sustainable packaging,

logistics and products.

.'9% Percentage of identified key suppliers
alighed with our Supplier Code

of our identified key suppliers are
aligned with our Supplier Code

KPI
% of identified key suppliers aligned
with Supplier Code

FY30 Target e . .

" . . y suppliers aligned
80% of key suppliers are aligned with with Supplier Cogde 599,
our Supplier Code

Ongoing Focus

- Continue to ensure alignment of
key suppliers with Supplier Code

- Align our Supply Chair Palicy and
processes with our net zero targets

- Build our understanding of supplier
ermnissions




Tackling Emissions and Waste

To be net zero across our operctions
by 2040 and net zero across our value
chain by 2050 ct the lotest.

2022 Highlights

- Emissions fiat, excluding the impact
of new acquisitions during the year,
despite strong organic growth

- Waste measured for the first time

— Business-driven initiatives

Total Scope 1 and 2 emissions

10,615

Tonnes COe

Emissions KPl

% reduction of Scope 1 and 2
emissions (tonnes CO.e) against FY22
baseline (10,615 tonnes COLe)

Waste KPI
% of total waste 1o londfill

FY30 Emissions Target
50% reduction of Scope
1 &2 emissions on FY22 baseline

FY30 Waste Target
Less than 15% waste to landfill

Ongoing Focus

- Set 5BTi net zero target

- Build internal knowledge of
Scopes 1, 2& 3

- Divert waste from landfill

- Setout a clear roadmap to
our 2030 targets

We are committed to net zero emissions
across our value chain by 2050 at the latest.
We have set an interim 50% reduction target
for our own operations by FY30. We are
currently calculating our Scope 3 and will
submit our net zero targets for verification
by the SBTi in FY23.
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- 7,359 o
10,615
Tonnes CO,e per £1m revenue Purchased electricity kWh
10.5 14,033,971
2022 10.5 2022 14,033,971
2021 125 202 13,947,147
2020 8.0 2020 7,762,447

Gross emissions

10,615

2022
2021
2020

4,331




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

CASE STUDY

Packaging

Packaging initiatives are being put in place
across the Group. For many businesses, the
focus has been on creating @ moere circular
packaging systerm.

Some businesses have invested in shredding
machines in order to reuse incoming
cardboard packaging os packing material
for outgoing orders. Other businesses have
focused on removing nen-recyclable
elerments from their packaging by replacing
plastic tape with paper tape - removing
more than atonne of plastic for their
customers. Another scherme has completely
removed branding from all packaging. By
working closely with our suppliers to have
products defivered in plain, cardboard
boxes, product packaging can be reused by
our businesses and customers.

All of these initiatives support our ambition
to reduce our waste-to-londfill and overal
waste. it also supports our custormers in
achieving their own net zero and waste
reduction initiat'ves.



CASE S5TUDY

Facility upgrades

During FYZ22, our European Life Sciences business,
Simonsen & Weel, moved into a new location that
benefits from more efficient heating and cocling,
solar panels, state-of the-art insulation and electric
vehicle charging. The business also decided to
improve biodiversity in the surrounding area by
sowing wildflower meadows on its surrounding land.

yoday o16arong
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

DELIVERS
IMPACT

48 Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022




Our businesses deliver positive impact
through products and services that benefit
our society or environment. Growth initiatives
in these areas offer exciting commercial
opportunities and support our purpose.

Pasitive impact revenue is generated across
ali businesses from the sale of praducts,
services and solutiors that barefit our
society or 2nvironrrent and sapport the
UC]F’\S‘\U‘CH toa mare EL‘E-Tﬁiif‘Glf:llz‘ tutre.
Growth initiotives in these areas offer a key
Opportunity to positively impact aur
stokeholders.

There are huge opportanities to b founa
inthe sca'e of trensiormation recuired ta
cracle a more sostanable, low-carton
e sives wee sell into
- ornbzly or the seals sold
G renewable criergy generatior.

Yr Businesses atso supply products that
support healthy and safe communities,
such 58 the Righty-stranded silicens cable,
supplied by our Controls Seator, that 15 used
in defibrisatars and ECO electrodss.

4% Diplorma PLC Annual Report 2022

Quir Life Sciznces businesses offer diagnostic
solutions that make i guicker and easier 1o
identify life threatering disecses, including
cutting edoe tec hr'.culf'gv thest allesws tor
carly detection of diseacos in rewborns, ano
horme-testing kits for remete cormmunities.

ised rnodel gives s the agility
M OEROrtunitios in thess ne
rowing end segrments
pliers and thelr industries to
innovate new, specialisec products and
solutions,

Qur positive IMmpact revenue streams are
an important component of our organic
growth strategy and each Sector has
growth plans in place.

yoday 216330135




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

DIPLOMA DELIVERS
RESPONSIBLY

50 Diplorr 2 FLC Arnuai F




Qur Group purpose is to consistently deliver
value and reward our stakeholders by making
a positive difference to our colleagues, our
customers and suppliers, and our
communities. We are committed to fulfilling
our purpose in a way that is environmentally,
socially and ethically responsible.

DVR governance

Cur DVR govermance stracture is leon and
redocts oo decentralised maodel, The Group
has responsibility for providing direction
ard suppoart, arcd the Beard bos Ltimate
avirsigot and seeponsisility for DVR coross
the Growp.

Operational sxecution takes place v our

nsible for DVR
5 e ore given
s aressin ling
with rnatericeity 1o their basiress, Taraets
are set at Group and Sector level and the
Executive team, which includes the Group
CEO o sector CROs, 15 rosponsilile for
thir their ares of

responsibulty.

il oo 20 e, VR F P are now
integrated inlo CLr reguar ITIgnuyEr et
reporting, molocing biannual updates on
car emissiors, Cur businesses report their
crnissions data quarterly Lo the Group,
viboroitis rovies by the =oricr firance
team ond reragad for improvernont by
the Secior leadersbip team,

Positive Impact Revere datais collzcted
frorr e busiress and aralysed twice a

YN R P C = irgy. Thiz

aralysis s corsice:
35508507 clirman
i toris reviewed by the
[DVR steering

D'plema PLC Annual Report 2022

The role of the DVR Stoerng Comimittes,
which iz chaoires by the Group CEC, is 1o
outlire Group strategy cgainst the OVR
frarmevenrk, set Group initiotives orad

targets, support the Sectors and businesses,

and monitor and cormmunicate progress.
the challenge of a decentralizea business
can et ensure aligrrment with Greap
abijectives and drive meaningtul praae
Commuricotion is key 1o the effoct

of DVR mmanagerment across the Gr

DR features heavily in regubar intere:
SLT cornminrications,

Cur Senior Lecdership Tearm (SLT), which
mcludes business MDs s spdates guorterly

on BVR auring regular S5LT updatos from the

CEQ. They alsa attend in-depth sessions
with merbers of the DVR Steering
Cornmitiee to review performance and
VR governnnes, receive updates o VR
strategy and palicy changess, and share
their successes and best practics.

The ExecLtive team iz updated or DVE
along with the SLT but also hold reore
detailec sessions biannually as part of the
Executive Meetings. Sector CEGs ment
bianrually with the DVR Stoering
Carnmitten for o VR Qoverncnce miceting
to discuss DVR strateay, governanao,
climate related risks and oppartunitics,
and review progress ard initiatives,

The Board holds an annual 2¥R session to
revicws DVR strategy, objectives ard
progress. Clinate reloted risk managormient
is integrated into Group risk managerment.

uoday nbaiong




CESPONSIBLY

Our DVR governance structure

Diploma PLC
: Board &
Group CEO

DVR strategy &
framework J

Group DVR
governance

DVR
Strategy
Committee

Reporting & —  Executive
performance € team

Sharing resources,
tools, best practice
& suppeort

Developrment of

DVR networks .
Business

< MDs &DVR
Committees

Oversight of DVR strategy &
performance

Oversight of climate-related
risks & opportunities

/l\

Sector & Group performance
against targets

Sector & business
governance and reporting

Identification &
managerment of Group &
Sector climate-related risks

1

DVR performance and
initiatives

Identification and
management of climate-
related risks




Our metrics and targets

PRV T a [ oo o N

Fyaz Durawng tesrr visiorn,

yoday o1Baipiig

Charitable donations




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Taskforce on Climate- I QUT response
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

RISK MANAGEMENT

METRICS AND TARGETS

W




Our policies and procedures
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

MEASURING
OUR
PROGRESS

FINANCIAL KPis

We measure our performance against

a number of financial and non-financial
metrics which reflect how we are delivering
against our strategic objectives (as set out

on pages 22-33), our financial model (see page
22) and our ESG framework (see pages 34-57).

Organic revenue growth

Organic revenue growth is the Groug's
number one priority. We focus on
products and solutions which are
critical 10 custorners’ needs, Jiving
resilience 1o revenues. We target
rid-single digit organic growtn

6%

Five-year average

Reported revenue growth

‘We a1 deliver sustoinabie dolbie-
digit growtn througn o corrSination
of organic grewth and high-qualty,
value-enhan<ing acquisitions whicn
accelerate our ©rgonIc growth

18%

Five-year cornpound

Adjusted operating margin

Our differentiated value-added
solutions and custorrer-focused
approzch drive customer loyalty
and treate pricing power, sLLEorting
susTainacke and attroctive margins,
We target a rmargin of 17%.+.

179%

Five-yecr average

Adjusted EPS

EPS growth is ¢ measure of haow
successful we nave been = growing
orgaricaty and through ocquist an,
inciuding caprtal zllocation cne 1ax
corsiderat.ons Ve torget dalkbe-zigit
EPS growtn,

17%

Five-year compound

Free cash flow conversion

heclthy, growing
free cozn fAowe comverson o

96%

Five-year average

ROATCE

This mecsuras Pove 300
generating ret.ne 0T the
roce Ve target ROLTCE in the =

m
wn
IS

20.2%

Five-year average
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NON-FINANCIAL KPls

OUR COLLEAGUES

Engagement index
An externally benchmarked score frorm our
annual engagernent survey

TARGET
mointcin; O /O I
bl 2

£

Lost time incident {LTI) rate
Number of {Tls per 1,000 employees

% women on the Senior Management
Team (SMT)

TARGET FY30 TARGET

5% year-on-year reduction 40()/
o+

20 21 2z 21 22

o &
IIIEIIII IIIEIIII III!!III IIIIIII!IIIIIII

CUR ENVIRONMENT

% key suppliers aligned
with Supplier Code’

FY30 TARGET

80%

of key suppliers aligned with
Supplier Code by FY30

It

% of total waste to landfill % reduction of Scope 1 & 2 emissions

against FY22 baseline

FY30 TARGET

o0%

reduction in Scope 1& 2
ermnissions

FY30 TARGET

<15%

waste to landfill

2022 2322 fonselns

e d
4 L oteregared T seer ooy
B + i
“Y Dminra PLC Annogs Reporr 2022

R S N i

0%

ey g mrr Fror ace o4 jar aetpeo qoieyee b
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SECTOR REVIEW

CONTROLS
SECTOR
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The Controls Sector Revenue by segment
businesses supply g
specialised wiring, |

cable, connectors, o e

fasteners, control 10% FF
devices and adhesives gf ]‘”fc*
for a range of S
technically demanding

applications.

MBIAIBAQD

ytoday nbaipiig

Revenue by geography’
Wlndy City Wire (WCW): 50% Specmlty Fasteners: 10%

Alzadirg value-acis e Specialty, premiun-guality
istibeatar of premiu nwuu!ﬂy fastonsr cother witn
= cable ¢ Are. technical sapport, cuality
rmprabersive coble speciication and other
rmonagement systems qererale value-acded services for
»qu‘rw R tagle and custorners inivil fAerospaca,
CUSTOrMSr, or ,;,.w.mi, [‘,aen:;r arid BB Morth Armericn
A_Ac.r*erol indostrial We also 239 |k
Wire & Cable (UK): 9% sepporl key custorners with 16% Cortimen Lo
o . : A e Continzrtal ELiope
Specialist and flexibile cobilc Jur culomates imnvertory v 3% Crper
products cnd catile replerishrment sclutions ) N
wertification, termination and
management products, snd Fluid Centrols: 6%
cable rnenagement solutions Fluid controllers, compressors,
across o broad base of walves, ternpercturs and
castomers in burope. [rEsilre mEasurement dovices,
and spacialised iguid dispensing
Interconnect: 22% components prirmarily for
Harmess compaonents anc custormers in the LK Food &
spexsiclist conrooto edir Geverage secton
technizally demandi Reported revenue (£m)
cpplications across imaltiple Adhesives: 3% {compound growth over five vears)
incdustrize in Furops and the US. Speciclty siliconee, ozhesives

O businesses cupply 3 rangs and sealants tagethe with O
of preducts and value add sechinical suppart ond ather + O
services ard prooudc, :ﬁCLJd\ﬁQ vaclue-cdded services, O
protective sleevin

lenoth tubing, kittirg, mmwctor 22 492.8
assemibly ard protatype

grantities of customised
rulti-core cabes,

asupusAAcL 331piodion

S1U8LUAID}S |DIDUDULY
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“Our International Controls
businesses have shown
tremendous energy in
building mormentum - it's
been great to see their hard
work pay off this past year.”

David Goode
Sector CEO, Controls

' A

“It's been ancther great year
for Windy City Wire thanks
to our great proposition,
winning culture and ability
to deliver for the customer.”

Rich Galgano
CEOQ, Windy City Wire

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
FY 2022

FY 2021 Change in the year

Revenue

£492.8m

£343.3m  +44%

Organic revenue
growth

+24%

+16%

Adjusted operating
profit

£105.8m

£72.4m +46%

Adjusted operating
rmargin

21.5%

211% +40bps

- Share goins in high growth end markets
and compelling customer proposition
driving an excellent WCW performance:
organic revenue growth 32%, including
double-digit volume growth

- International Controls organic growth
18%, with accelerating growth in
attractive end segments while also
broadening US and European exposure

- Product extension: excellent organic
growth in our new Adhesives business line,
with a bolt-on acquisition 1o add scale
and diversify end markets

S T - Wire & Cable

N

I B T S0 AL RN e

Interconnect

Specialty Fasteners =~ ==+ -~




CASE STUDY
High growth end
markets

Strotegic progress

yoday 216310435

- Adh

esives -

e et

Cur Adhesives business delivered »20%
organic growth, helped by exposure to high
growth end markets. Cur products and
solutions have many applications, including
in electronic control units for electric and
autoncmous vehicles and for waterproofing
connections as part of ¢ large scale fibre
optic roll-out in the UK by a major
telecommunications company.
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Windy City Wire &0 Read more
A > :;T = diplormaple.com/about-us/our-sectors/
SELv R o IN controls
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The Seals Sector
businesses supply a
range of seals, gaskets,
cylinders, components
and kits used in heavy
mobile machinery and
a diverse range of fluid
power products with
Aftermarket, OEM

and MRO applications.

international Seals: 47%
Oun Sels busine ir Euirope
and Australio supply ceals,
gaskets, pumps cna reloted
accessories, custorn moulded
and machinzd parts, bycroulic
cylnder compeornents, anc o
diverse rarge of fuid pover
produc ts to Aftermarket, OFM
arg MRO customers

North American
Aftermarket: 23%

Supplies o variety of seals,
generally on a next-day bosis,
for o brosc riange of mokile
machinery ased in heavy
Corstructior, Mining and
Agriculture. Pracucts are used
in repair and maintenances after
squipment Fas completad its
inticlh warrcnty perios or boen
sold on the pra-used market,
Customers are mainly repeir
shops, engine and transmission
rebuiiders ard cther beawy
csuipment parts distributors,

US industrial OEM: 18%
Supplizs seals, gaskets, Crings
ara custome-malded and
machined parts. The business
works closely with custormers ta
specify the mest appropriate
soal design, matericl and
manutactarer for the
apolicetion: provides technical

port during product
developraert; and delivars the
legistics capabilities to support
srrall 1o rmedicm-sized
produstion runs.

US Maintenance, Repair &
Overhaul (MRO): 12%

Our MRO business, VSP
Technologies [VOF), supplies
high- quality gaskets and fiuid
sealing products to critical
services in high cost-of feilure

applications. The business warks

directly with customers tc
Improve soalng pe-formance,
provicirg expertise, product

recorrmendations and training.

VSF zells primariiy to
tranzportation, chemic 2l
processing. power and rmaring
custormers.

65 Diplsrma PLC Annual Repert 2022
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Revenue by segment’

MBIAIDA

47% Irternational Seals
23% MNA Aftermnsrket
18% US Industrial OLM
12% USMRO

wodey o1Baznng -

Revenue by geography’

® 50% WNorth Armerica
37% Uk & Furcps
13% International
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Reported revenue (Em)
zompound growth over five yoars)

+11% p.a.
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“The team has been the
standout highlight of my
first year — they've shown
great leadership in driving
growth in a tough supply
chain environment. I'd like
to thank them all for their
commitment.”

Ted Messmer
Sector CEO, North American Seals

2022 was a transformational
year for International Seals:
we've welcomed around 400
new colleagues from R&G
and other businesses and
enter the year ahead better
positioned than ever.”

Alessandro Lala
Sector CEQ, Internationcal Seals

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FY 2022

FY 2021

Change in the year

Revenue

£331.4m

£263.7m

+26%

Orgonic revenue
growth

+14%

+/%

Adjusted operating
profit

£62.6m

£46.5m

+35%

Adjusted operating
margin

18.9%

17.6%

+130bps

Geographic penetration: Louisville giving
access to previously untapped Western
and Midwestern states, driving
accelerated market share gains in North
American Aftermarket

Diversification in growth end segrents:
International Seais organic growth 1%
with broad-based growth agoinst a
strong comparator

Product extension: strategic acquisition of
R&G in April to build scale in the UK and

broaden the Seais product pertfolic into
pneumatics, expanding addressable

markets

- Building scale: acquisition of ACT,
a supplier of innovative anti-corrosion
products and solutions, adds further scale
to the high quality plotform for growth
we have built in Australio over the last

three years

=
s

Sector financial performance

North American Seals &7 . o~ %z::-

North American Afterr:;url;ét e .o

US Industriat OEM - =~ -




CASE STUDY
Product range

extension delivering
organic growth

International Seals .~ -

e, T e

uoday 216aypn3g

New proprietary products helped to drive
crganic growth of »20% in USMRO. The
business's Service Equiprment Rebuild Kits
(SERK™) provide custorners with technical
expertise and a kitting solution that saves
time and money, and reduces the total cost
of ownership. Sales of the kits tripled in
FY22, attracting new custornears and driving
market share gains.

Read more
diplomaplc.com/about-us/our-sectors/seals/
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SECTOR REVIEW

LIFE SCIENCES
SECTOR
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The Life Sciences

Sector businesses

supply a range of
equipment, consumables,
instrumentation and
related services to the
Healthcare industry.

Conada: 43% Europe: 36%

Cur market lzading Canodior Our Irish & UK business

businesses supply clinical distributes leading-edae

dizgrcstics instrurnentation techrologiss, focused on

ard wrodu s specichty specialist loboratory diagnostics

surgical devices togetiner with ara specialty medicol dévices,

e A-Led corsurmatses and Our Scondiravian basinesses

ices 1o public hospitals, sLpply devices, equipmenrt
lirizs and pathalsgy anc patient misnitoring

lalsaratorios, technalogies used in operating
theatres as well os meaically

Australasia: 21% supervised nutrition

A leading supplier o!

instramentation ard

consumables 1o the pathel

sucr.tn“u, roscarch ard e hro\

segmiertz. Operating in

Austrelia and New Zealand, the

bsinesess aleo wpply specialict

surgical ecuipnicnt and

consumables Lsed in hospital

operating rocmes,
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Revenue by segment’

Testing & Dicanostics

Surgical
Gastroirtestinal
Other healthcare

Revenue by geography’

43% Canada
36% Curope
21% Australia

Reported revenue (£fm)
fcompound growth aver five vears)

+8% p.qQ.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FY 2022 Ay Change in the year

Reverwe  £188.6m  £1804m  +5%
Organic revenue (4)% +14% \

growth

Adsedcpersting  £410m  £432m  (5)%

profit

Adjusted operating ] _7% 239% (220) bpS

margin

“Our Life Sciences businesses

have done a great job of - QOrganic revenue growth was 2% - Strotegic acquisition of Accuscience:
developing our prod uct excluding last year's Covid-related increases exposure to high growth testing,

: H : revenues and was moderated by hospital diagnostics and medical segments;
Plpellnef fOCUSIng on . staffing shortages; returned to organic continues the build out of cur European
Innovative pdeUCtS that will growth in Q4 as expected footprint
improve pqtient outcomes - Strgng diagnostics and endoscopy - Sisciplir?e? p]ortfo\\io "nanageTent:

e ; : performance isposal of al-envirosciences
and position us in hlgh - Sector well-positioned for growth: exposed
growth areas. Our prospects to rising diagnostics spend and significant
are exciting." elective surgicol bocklogs
Dan Brown S P ial perf S
Sector CEQ, Life Sciences ector ’nqr!?m performance S

- T N 3

- testing and diagnostics . -~ . oc-




CASE STUDY
Innovative products
driving growth

Strategi

o]

f -

c progress

‘.

MBIAIBA

1oday s1baypng

A key highlight for the yeor was Life
Sciences’ success with Fuji CAD EYE™,

an innovative endoscope utilising Al
technology. Our tearn partnered with Fuji to
commercialise this cutting edge product,
which has been a huge success and an
important contributor to our strong
performance in endoscopy in the year.

Read more
diplomaplc.com/about-us/our-sectors/
lifesciences/
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ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS
AND SECTION 172 STATEMENT

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006
requires the Directors to promote the
success of the Company for the benefit

of the members as a whole, having regard
to the interests of stakeholders in their
decision-making.

How stakeholder interests have
influenced decision-making

Set out oelow are some exarrples of
decisioms made oy the Board in the year.

Dividend

Dre of the principoe decisions consideed
oy the Board over the year has beer in
celction o retun € tc sharenoders.
in Making its genisions regarding the 2021
fing dividend ard 2022 ntenm Zividend
tne Board considered our sharenaiders’
expectations, the Company s liouiaty
positicon, and the requirernent 1o mairtam

a3 prudent leve. of dividend cover taxing
At cczout e fimancial rescuices

requitec tu execute Tu s stecy.

Acquisitions
Arguisition sppottLaites remain centai
to our strateqy. e Board is aso

rindful ot et
g staxeho ders, Trio:

entia impact Gn ou”
grout The

ed and apsroved
sEvers! mew OLDo tun ties and o '
L Sectors. Tre Board -ec

s 0u
Tl e
ez

Q
[y
]

i8]

s

o

Zetd

Carporate

o] CTILGOT,
ragrefulinestmee 1 bhysinesces tngt

D0S5eE 25N s DILIoTa Charactenstics,
sarticuarly migh-guorty, vohee-cdd

sustommer sevinimg distriboton and gredt
TRONQgeme”
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OUR COLLEAGUES OUR BUSINESSES CUR CUSTOMERS

Y_Vhy !Vi;we en_g_age_" -
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How the Board engages
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ENGCAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS
AND SECTION 172 STATEMENT
CONTINUED

QOUR SUPPLY CHAIN QOUR INVESTORS ENVIRONMENT
AND COMMUNITIES

hy we engage ~ Why we engage - o \
B L e NP S R T S T PPN

How we engage Lo
et Mt rraceetat wen e, JDD aren LT o

- How we ;ngoge o o
s BT e i R A SR

; ” el [ .. - - "
T - (o DR
How the Board engages = Tz
P e T LTl TIPS - -
- How the Board engages z St Iz
- How the Board engages -




CASE STUDY

Relocation of Abacus dx and
Big Green Surgical

This year, two of our Australian Life Sciences
businesses successfully integrated their operations
at a shared facility. The objective was to create
better operational efficiency and improve service
to customers and suppliers. Careful consideration
was given to colleague welibeing, engagement
and career progression, including through internal
communication, colleague consultation, and
openly addressing any concerns raised. The

rove has improved employee engagerment

and development, as well as Health & Safety.

The new facility also benefits frorn LED lighting,
better insulation and mare efficient heating and
cooling systems.

MIIAIDAD

1oday 216a3p135
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A number of our businesses have been
recognised by their customers, suppliers
and colleagues this year.

Feefo Trusted Service Award e
at Shoal Group O WO r

Techsil won the Al

Distributor Awards for the fourth
year running from a major
supplier

Silver EcoVadis award at VSP e
Technologies %

customer satisfaction at M Seals

BOUDUISADLD) a1pb40ds

it
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M Seals UK shortlisted in Filcon Electronics awarded best
Developing Future Talent 2021 European Distributor by a
Category for Make UK major supplier

75 Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022




Q&A WITH OUR NEW CFO

What are your priorities for
the year ahead?

“Our strong Q—
performc nce and What do you bring to the role?
strategic progress
in such challenging A
circumstances are AR
testament to our e
outstanding R
colleagues.”

Chris Davies s
CFC -




FINANCIAL REVIEW

2 - Attractive, high teens margins Effective tax rate broadly unchanged
< (See table 2} T S LR M PR T T le Yo et £

EET I

Financial highlights (See tobie 1)

e e

Higher financing costs

T

wodsy 516930135
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Table 1: Financial highlights

Adwsted resalts

FY F %e
2022 2023 10 1ae 207 Change

1,012.8
144.3
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
CONTINUED

Free cash flow conversion 90%

Disciplined portfolic management

e o e -

Liabilities to shareholders
of acquired businesses

- - i




Organic revenue growth

15%

0

MIINIBA

Reported revenue growth

29%

Adjusted operating margin

ey I IR TR 18.9%

1ioday 216930035

Employee pension obligations FX tailwind and interest headwind
T e e ST et largely offsetting -
e - . R T Free cash flow conversion

Q0%

Net debt/EBITDA

- 1.4«

2upuIanon apiodion

s
5
o
-
a
e
[ 74
-+
]
Ind
[
3
[
3
o+
o

GEF equivaent interest rote exposure
& =] I t_e € F 3 DO . o
fad
....... — v - T =
B o SRS o
_ o P -
-t . ; et 3
= PR R =
]
< - . . Z To-mt - 3
. Bl 3
- + n
: : e,
o
=
Gross debt drawn at year end £370.6m
Netdebtotyearend €3289m -




INTERNAL CONTROL AND
RISK MANAGEMENT

Effective risk management is integral to
our strategic ambitions and provides a solid
foundation for our businesses to scale.

Qur gpproach
[RaDiakd

T -

Our risk management
framework

DIPLOMA PLC

Top down

The Group maenages
horizon scanning for
emerging risks, review
of principal risks,
internal controls,
processes and risk

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

management
AUDIT COMMITTEE frameworks
EXECUTIVE
TEAM
Bottem up

Qur businesses
continually identify
LOCAL MANAGEMENT TEAMS risks and opportunities
to feed into sector and
Group risk reviews

OUR BUSINESSES




Risk appetite T T S S T L) Emerging risk  Description
T - - . . - . R Techno{ogy - -
evolution

Clirmate change

identifying and menitoring
material risks

s r
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
CONTINUED

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group’s decentralised operations, which
have different Sectors and geographical
spread, helps mitigate the potential impact
of these principal risks.

Principal risk Risk description and assessment Mitigation

Downturn/instobility £dverse changes v the major markets The pusinesses identity key market d"ver‘s\.

. . Thart the businesses operate ir Can resuit ond mon'tor trends ond ‘orecasts, as welt

In Magjor ma rkets i= sicvang revenue growth doe 1o reduced a5 maintaining clese rerctionamips with key
or deigyeG de~and for products and customers who ~nay give an early warmng

Risk category services, OF marg’n pressures due to of slowirng denand.

Macrofextarnal risk mregsed competition.

Board risk appetite
byverse

Change in risk

S

Thig -igk reaing gt & similar leve 10108t
yvear and s addressed continuous'y 1Ir our
n K FTIANGgE TIENT [IOCess

A numoer of charactensiics of the Group's

nusinesses rmoderste the impoct of

economic ad usess cycies:

~ Tne Group's businesses ooerate in three
aifferent Sectors with differant
characternstics and acoss A nurmner oF

TECGrapnIl MarTkes

oL
zaptal budgets.
- T TRanYy COses e

repar, TrATTenonT

ort ar _fastare




Principal risk Risk description and assessment Mitigation
Supply chain The ability tc service cur customers in o Manoagement Continues te Dulsue

timely manner is g key part of our vailue- diversification strctegias ana regulariy
Risk category added proposition. secks aternotive SCurting.
Strategic risk i .

For rmanufacturer-bronded products, Long-ter, Mult-yeor exclusive controcts
Board risk appetite there s the risk that existing distribution nave beer sigred with suppliers with
Cactious agreerments and vertical integration of change of control clauses, where

Change in risk

S

Suppty chain disrupt’on has reduced
<rceiast year but operational
miferrupuons at customers and suppliers

continue

suppliers is canceled, therefore losing access
to ey distribution channels.

The-e is olso the risk of

- Asupplier taking uway exclugivity.

- Manufacturing lead times increasing as
aresult of supply chain shortoges., Ve
have experienced this, particuarty with
cuppliers based in Asig, in the current
yeor.

- Supply chain partners not operating to
the sorre ethical stangards as Dipierna.

apwolicabie, tor protection or compensation
m the event of acguisition.

We maimtain strong reiaticnshps with
suppiiers and keep custorners updatad in
e evert of change to retain key business.

Meeting with key customers regu arly
to gain insight mie e pradact
requirerents and market developments.

We work with our supply cnain partners

to hep thern meet our stanaards of
acceptabe work ng conditions, finarcial
stobility. ethics ond technicai competence.
If they cre \nm“'c 1o meeat these stardords
then we wil source product etsewhere,

Inflationary
environment

Risk category

Macrorexternai nisk

Board risk appetite

\.uuL‘u‘,_

Change in risk

®

Significant or unexpected cost increnses by
supplers due 1o the pass through of higher
commoed ty orices or other price increaseas,
higher trade toriffs and/or foreign currency
Huctuotions, could adverseily impact profits
if businesses are unable to pass on such cost
increases to custormners.

rmproved pricing processes and the
value-added activities undertares by the
Dusimesses rean we are better akie o
pOSS COSY INCTB0Ses 10 Customes

A number of characte-istics of the Groug’s
busingsses ~odergto the impact o
BCONOT L oNG DUSINess cyciet
- Tre Group'c businesses sperate n three
ditferent Seciore vath ditterent
characmentshos and Z0rose o e ber
of gecranhic markets
a6 offer ¢

reqsing Coastormerns

o]

MBIAIBA
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Unsuccessful
acquisition

Risk category
Strategic risk

Board risk appetite
Tolerant

Change in risk

©

The acquisition pipeline remains
healthy and Diptorma retains s
disciplined approach to bringing
high-gquality, value-enhancing
businesses intc Diploma.

Diploma has a strong history of disciplined
acquisttions. The business model of the
Group is based on successtul acquisitions in
lorge and deveioped markets and sectors.

The foillowing are the key risks of an

acguisition process:

- The Group may overpay for a target.

- The acquired business may experience
limited growth post acquisition.

- Loss of key custormers or suppliers post
integration.

- Potertial cultural misfit as smaller
businesses ore foced with the new
requirerments of a listed Company.

The above ay be the result of inadequate
due diligence, peor integration or unrealistic
assumptions used in the investrment case.

A clearly defined accquisition strotegy
is in place witn o disciplined approach,
including financial returr burdies, to
bringing high-quality, value-enhancing
businesses into the Group.

An experienced Corporate Developrnent
team is respansible for seeking and
evaluating new acquisition opportunities
with the Corporate Development Director
reporting to the CEOQ.

A formal due diligence process is followed
for every acquisition, with close supervision
by the CEC and relevant Group senior
managerment. A forma’ governonce
process is in ploce up to Board leve!

A disciplined post-acquisition integration
process covers operational, nandial,
governance, eqal and reporting matters.
The Board reviews performance of recent
acquisitions annualy.

Geopolitical disruptions

Risk category
Macro/extersal risk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in Risk

@®

This “'sx remoing e.evated =~ camtan
geograpnias, INCluding cue 1o 0ngoing
events such as the conbizt i Uk raine

I
|

Diptorma operates 1 established ecanarmies
with stable political and lega® systems.

Geopolitical events that could disrupt the
Group's operctions are mainly refated to:
- Interruption of trade agreements.
- Tariffs.
- Change of t-ade relationships amongst
countries in which we operate
{e.g. Brexit).
- Government budget spending.
- Political 2 ecticns.

We continte to divers'fy our supoly tose
and irvest in product range deve-cprnent
to rmitigate exposure 1o any sngie market
or region.

Whenever possible, we captaise an Oroup
synergees and leverage inter-company
trading.




Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Health & Safety

Risk category
Operatonal risk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in risk

@

Remtive to FYZ1 there nas beena
significant decrease in Meahh & Safety
risk g @ result of the conciusion of the
Covid-19 pandemic and improvemeants
in processes arising from the pandemic,

Sorre Diptoma pusinesses are exposed to

Health & Sofety ~sks, incuding via tne

eny ronmens in which their empioyees,
ractors, customers, and supliers

The Covid-19 pandermis piaced a greoter
focus on Health & Safety anc prevent
megsures t¢ lirmit tre spread of Covid
Implementing and continuousty evalving
these measures has imaroved Health &
Safety across the Group.

Additicnaly, management continues to
oromete mental nealth and wetlbeing,
offering support 1o colleogues and acces:s
to on employee assistance programme.

Technology & cyber

Risk category
Operationai risi

Board risk appetite

Caoutious

Change in risk

©

The rick of cyber-ottocks remoined
in 2022

[te}

e buzinesses mantained a tugn
staornaard of cybersecurity wrnst
accormmodating remote workar
sractices 'moterritories where o
Dekdowns were in ploce 08 3
the Cov'd A% panderz,

Growp and operating business management
depend citicaly ontirely and relicble
informmation frorm thei- T gystemms to run
e T businesses and serve their customers’
~eeds,

Any gisruption o denio’ of service miay
de.ay or 'mpact dec’sion-makng if refiable
daotz s unovolizhie

oo informaton hionding or interruption

o lead to reduced service
torners. Unintendes actions of
oy e O,
G lead To uption, including fraud.

f Lsiness i ay o

The decentralised nature of the Group.
incluchng stamd owne T systerms for each
usiness, imits the potent'al impact 1o any
individuar business. There is good suppor
and back-up BLilt inte focal IT eysterns,

Al businesses in tne Group have o robust
cybersecurity prograrmrme and we reguiarly
engage with cybesecurity experts to
continuous y rmprove and strengthen gur
iT svstems,

Aformalised ERP opprova’ anc
‘motementaticn process ensures
businesses ~ave the most suitable
T systams 1o efect ve y rmoncge
their business.
Sucmecs ctinuty
.

SLsines: witn Tngo

C
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Talent & diversity

Risk category

Operational risk

Board risk appetite
Cautious

Change in risk

@®

This risk has increcsed in the year, mainly
due to current market labour conditions
with the tightening of labour markets
affecring candidate availability and
retention, upword pressure on woge
levels in certain geographies and
changing expectations of working
environments.

The success of the Group i built on strong,
seif-standing managernent teams in the
operating businesses, committed to the
success of their respective businesses.

As a result, the loss of key personnel can
have an impact on performance for

a fimited time period.

Mot having the right talent or diversity

at allevels of the organisation to deliver
our strateqy, resulting in reduced finoncial
performance.

Contractual terms such: s notice periods
and non-compete clauses can mitigate
the risk in the short term,

The Group places very high importance

on planning development, motivation

and reward:

- Ensuring a challenging working
environment where managers fee: they
have control over, and responsibility for,
their businesses.

- Implementing a structured taient review
process for the development, retention
and succession of key personnel.

- Offering batanced and competitive
compensation packages with
cormnbination of saiacy, annuat borus and
iong-term cash or share inceritive planc.

- Giving the freedom, encouragement,
financial resources and strategic suppor:
for managers to pursue ambitious
growth plons.

Product liability

Risk category
Cperational risk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in risk

©

Tnis risk remaine ot a similar leve 1o
ast year

There i a3 nsk that products suppiied by a
Grouo business =nav faii in service, which
could lead to o cdlairm under product Fability.

The Group maoy be exposed 1o legol costs
and potential damages if the clam
succeeds and the suppiier fails to meet its
tigbiities for wnotever reason.,

i~ stuations wnere a GroLp DUS
selling own-bro~ded products ona connct
subrogote the lignit

Uty to asupplier, the

busness wit be lable for *ait ure of tme
product

Technicaily quaified persornet and contral
systerns are in place to ensure products
rmeet quaiity requirements. The Group's
businesses are required tc undertake
product risk ocsessments

and comprehensive supplier quality
TSSLTANCE QtLessments.

The businesses. in their terms and
conditions of saie with customaers,

will typicaily irer tne terms ond
conditions of purchase from the suppliers
o umt any lasihties




Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Fo I'Eig n currency
Risk category

Financial »isk

Board risk appetite
Cautious

Change in risk

©

This risk has -emained ot o similar level
to fast year,

The Group s exposed 1o twe types of
financial risk caused by currency voiatility:
trons«atioral exposure, on translating the
results of overseas subsidiaries into UK
sterling; and transactional exposure, due 1o
operating pusinesses’ revenues or product
costs being denominated in a currency
other than the'r local currency.

Trans ational foreign exchange risk arises
primarily with respect to the US daobar, the
Canadian dollar, the Australian doliar and
the Euro,

A strengzhening of UK sterting by 10%
against all the currencies in whicn the Group
does business, would reduce adjusted
operating prefit by approsimately £177.0m
(9%, due tc currency translation. Sirmiarly,
a strengthening of UK steriing by 10%
against ali the non-UK sterling capital
employed would reduce sharenciders’ funds
by £31.6m {5%).

Transactional foreign exchange risk arises
principaily with respect to S doitars and
Euros. The majority of the Group's Canadian
and Australiagn businesses’ purchases are
dencmincted in US dollars and Eurps. The
Sroup's US businesses do not have any
material foreigr currency Transactiona’ ricr.

The Group operates across ¢ numoer of
diverse geogrophies oyt does not nedge
transiotional exposure of ope atng profit
and net gssets.

The Group's businesses may hedge up to
80% of forecast (for o maximum of 18
monthsy foreign currency transactional
erpasures using forwa-d foreign exchange
contracts.

Rolling menthly forecosts of currency
exposures are reviewed on o reguiar basis.

Detalls of average exchange -ates used in
the translation of overseas earnings and of
year end exchange rates used in the
trans.aton o oversegs balonce sheets, for
the principal currences used by the Group,
are showr in note 26 1o the consolidated
financia: statements.

0

MIIAIBA
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Change in risk

@

Lows governing businesses continue

0 norease in volume, scope and
camrplexity. As the Group scales,
Lusnesses are increasingly subject to the
regulations of multiple jurisdictions that
may not @ align with one ancther.

Cr ousinesses are focing a large numiber
of regulatory cnanges over the coming
vears ir respect of environmental

commmitrments o—d contros,

CONTINUED @ @ o

Principol risk Risk description end assessment Mitigation

Non-com p"c nce The Group's businesses are affected by The board of eacn business is accountabie
. various statutes, reguiations end standards for identifying and menitonng what iaws

Wlth IGWS in the countries and markets in which they are relevant 1o Their business, including any

operate. Diplorma PLC itself is o fsted entity emerging or changing "egisiation, and for

Risk category subject to reguiction and governance ensuring commercial legai risks are

Cperotional risk reqguirernents. oppropriotely monaged.

Board risk appetite The Head of Legal advises on legistative

Averse and reguiatary changes elevant to the

Group as a fisted cornpdany and Has
oversight of ol nater'ai transactions
including acguisitions.



VIABILITY STATEMENT -
DIPLOMA PLC

In accordance with the UK Corporate e
Governance Code, the Directors have
assessed the viability of the Group over

a three-year period to 30 September 2025,
which is a longer period than the outlook
required in adopting the going concern
basis of accounting.
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CHAIR'S INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE

Compliance W|th the UK Corporate Governance Code
s o th ot for the Yo ru\ EUr end

a~tweithoalat the prir
2018
PROrsice
TOrTE arG
: ort G

Ak

Principles of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2018

Board le qudershnp and company purpose
Diplorraic led by an eftective and
comitted Boord, dedicated 1o praormatiry
7 ten T sustairalde sucsoss of the
GGy, Lonerdting wall rchareholdors
stakehclders and conpributing
wdder socioty.

Ll PRSI e sins

b

o th

ooty

Division of responsibilities
[l roslon f tre Chair and s G
. . nd there 5 an acpropris
cercyutive and indopendasrt
2 Dircctors.
Composrtlon succession and evaluation
Lppoirtmments are subject toa formal
oprocedure,
G paace for the Soand
» wznt An evaluation of
the Board anc i |T5 mmittees is andertaken
sonually, inling with the Code

Audlt risk and |nternal control
Pl

Remuneration
Liptarrs ha

Dinlorre PLC Annual Recort 2022

Read more
10810113
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Dear Shareholder,

Cr gehalf of the Board, o delighted

to oresent the Compary s Corporute
Governonce Report for tne year enced

30 Septerber 2022, which is ~ry first renars
az vour Thair, One of the esuu. il les wf
my rele 2s Chalr is to premotes and oversee
*he highest standards of corporate
governance withi= the Boord and across
the Group. The Board plays a critica: roie
in ensuring that every part of our Grous
conducts its pusiness ina manner which

1s consistent with ethical standards
appropricte to a responsible corporate
ctizen. A sound corporate governonce
framewcrk with the right systems and
corticls s key to ensuring sustainable
Iong-term success; we are a'so very
conscious thot effective governance is not
purely o marter of reguiatory compliance
DUt eniCormpasses many issues including
operating with integrity ond H~|ncstv
promoting diversity and enasling better
decision making through inclusion *c
ensure we balance the needs of al.
stakeholders ond operate in o foir and
transparent manner,

Tris year will e the 30th ann versary of
the publication of the Codbury Cormruttes’s
feOort ON COrporate governance, the
feunding dozurrent for woday's UK
Corporate Governance Code the Codel,
Tmz report highlighted the importance of an
effective board in creating and maintairing
good corporate governance and set out the
fundamentals of goed governance wh ch
rewr.ain in the current Code. As the
ervironment i which cerporaie citizens
operate nas evolved and aur Group has
cortimued to grow . scale and comnplesity,
we nove continded to develop and ‘morove
went constitutes guod gove nanee with o
r)J't'Wu ar focus on stakahoders,
ustainakility, and iong-term vaiue creation,

“The high standards of
corporate governance
underpin everything
we deliver.”

Tre Board i verv conscicus of the roe t
aloys in ensuring that Diploma operce
manner whicn is consistent witn the «
standards of corporcte governance
pondermsc ho s acceleroted the evolut‘or s
the appraacnes of sharenc'ders and cther
stokehoders 1o these and broader topics.
Finoncial performance is no longer the s
guiding reasor for o corparation. instead It
must consider 'ts place and role in society,
its resilience and its ablity 10 create vaue
over tire for a w'de range of diferert
stakeholders Trroughout the iast few veors,
we have developed our approoch and
thinking areund sharehoders ond
stakeholders, fow we capture their v ews
and deliver their imterects. A core slement
of this is the work that the Board has done
over the year To ensure that Diplomo
contributes To wider society Trrough
sustainabie, long-tern pastices as well 23
through our Deilvering Value Responsibly
(OVRY torgets. Further inforratian or ou-
mstomob..ny orograrmmes can e found on
pages 42 to 53, We have alss comtinuad to
ovolve and ermbed our VR pragrarmme
througheout the Gioug. Incighits from our
DVR program —e have been used 1o infor—
steps taken Dy the Dourd esscutive
managernent and cur businesses to
improve the ef
processes, with the gost of furthe:
ernpowering ouJ co‘leagl,es nCrens ng
ogiiity ond soeed in execution anao
enhancing loca! actountobil Ty,

fency of systerrs and

Effective lcadersnip omd optiral colleague
engagement depends on g nNecithy,
empowe ed ar G postive business culture,
Dipioma nos G s1ronNg DLUrpose, set
and cohesive catural fTundamertais whic -
govern aul actions and provide gu'dance
across o varied businesses eyen i recent
chailenging times. The irmoortanze of
culture has been cort'caiorly coute th
oS our .o lesgues continued 15 05301

3

Mew Wiyt © cF vy "’a"' FUrTher Jetals am ro

the Board Ras reomitcad o
culture car ke tound o~

e engh en thie

Board succession and evaluation
Boare succession remnains a key area
of octwity ond focus. Foliowing the
etirement of Joh~ Nicheics at our Annua!
Generat Meeting (AGM) on 19 lanuary 2022,
assumied the role of Char of your Board,
Batara Gibbes stepped down as CFC on
30 September 2022, and Chiis Davies was
aprointed to the role on 1 November 20022,
Anne Trorbur and Andy St are due to
retite pngr 1o the 2024 AGM and theretoe
the Board nos commenced the process of
seering suitable candidates to take over
trer Committee Chair postions. The Board
is keenly aware of the need for dversity and
inclusion, which is ¢ key component of the
Group's DVR prograrmme. The Boarg will
f‘or‘“\'rwue tc set the nignt conditions and
iead by example through 1s own approcch
to inclusion and diversity across its
composton: further information can be
foung in cur Nomination Committes Report
on pages 1081 112

Akey aspect of goo" governonce is for the
Boarato oot cally self-anatyse iteeif, ito
~erroets ang Committees, it order 1o
continuoly irmprove its effect veness. The
Boa s cormes cut effective-ess reviews
anmea by, and o FY22 this was andertaker
i Azl im line witt the Coae. This
eva uatior mas alke ennbled the Soard 1o
darfy comortunities for T 1o further
Imerove te efectiveness; addiicnal detar
on the evaluoton resute and areas of

eed focus can be founo on page 113,

ond's prortes for 2023 cemanr
continued foous on the
imoler evtancn of the Group' strategy;

Tre B

COPSETERT, vt a

g and managament of
e wel pioced 10 oxecute ite
%tema itorole to ersure thot the Group
cortinues 10 evolve, stae and deliver
nane growth, We
e auile, adapting owr thinking
omicting the intoreste

e one Lo atteny j*f A%

PR o -
e OrE TN0 ..-“’l.,“. 3

CrTEOTTOTT Y the Uty

e A N T

David Lowden
Chair
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GOVERNANCE AT A GLANCE

Ethnic diversity Gender diversity

100% MNon ethinic ™ ority : 57% Male
43% |[emale

Skills and experience

B2B, Industrial & Dizrribatior Soctors

Retail and FMCG Sed tors

Financial and Risk Mar agznoes

Operations

Custorner Servieo

Health & Sofety

Strotegy

K‘I&A/Fi nancing

mternational Business

Board and Committee attendance FY22 (as at 30 September 2022)

Length of tenure

» 57%  0-3vears
14%  3-&years
29% & 9 vears

Member Board Audit Committee

Nomination Committee

Remuneration Committes

David Lowden 8/8 - 4/4

6/6

]ohn Nicholas 3/3 - 1

171

thnny Thomson

10/10 ' B -

Barbara Gibbes /9

Anne Thorburn 10/10

Andy Smith 10/10

Geraldine Huse 10710

Dean Finch' 9/10

b Dean Tinch wag unabls to Stttz ot 20 e

Elhanges to the Board
- John Nicholas stepped down from the

Dovid Lowden was appointad as Chair of
Board on 19 January 2022, i

the Brard ard Marinator Committee
o 1% Jarsary 20

Board activity and focus area

Strategy and strategic exection
[

Collzagues and Culture

92 Diplorma PLC Annucl Report 2022

- Barbarg Gibbes stepped down from the
Board on 30 September 2022,

75
Operations
Governance




Our governance framework
Tre Boara

carmprises the Cnar, Executive Directors and Independent Non-Execut've Directors, and is respensitle for the serformance and

Iong-termr success of the Cormnpany, including heaith and safety, leadership, strateqy, vaiues, standards, controls and risk management.

David Lowden

Audit Committee
Chair: Anne Thorburn

Oversees and monitors the Company’s
financial statements, accounting
processes, audit {internai and external),
internal controls systems and financial risk
managernent procedures. Also monitors
the effectiveness of the internal Gudit
function and reviews the external auditor
independence and performance.

See more on pages 102 to 107,

Treasury Committee

Provides oversight of treasury activities in
irmplementing the treasury policies
approved by the Board.

Anne Thorburn

Group Company Secretary

oot 1Ty nar ord Ensures That

A iasterdials

o thiot trey

Board Committees

Nomination Committee
Chair: David Lowden

Regularly reviews structure, size and
composition of the Board and its
Cornmittees, ldentifies and nominates
suitable candidates to be appointed to the
Board. Leads the Board's succession
planning and keeps the senicr leadership
needs of the Group under review.
Oversees the development of o diverse
succession pipeline.

See more on pages 108 to 13,

Administration Committee

Conducts general business
administration on behalf of the Company
within clearly defined limits delegated by
the Board and subject to the matters
reserved to the Beard.

/“\.\

independent
Non-Executive Directors

~eed to perforT tne raes

Remuneration Committee
Chair: Andy Smith

Reviews and recormmends the framework
and policy on Executive Director and
senior ranagement remuneration.
Reviews workforce remuneration policies
and alignment with cutture.
See more on pages 114 to 138,

Disclosure Committee

Oversees the disclosure of market
sensitive information.

Executive Directors

Chtef Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

DT e T eTreT

T

Cotiom e e o s ST GTon . fot Dy 1 T

ot oy e s

Executlve tecrrn

O
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE

David Lowden
Board Chair & Nomination Chair

Joined
Oatober 2021

Current external appointments:

- Sen'or ndenendert Directer,
Maorgan Sindah slc

— Chain, Copita PLC

Relevant skills and experience:
- Industria, andg Distribution Sectors
- Financial anc Risk Managerrent
- Cperations
- Strategy
- MEA ond Financing

Imternationa Business

Past appointments:

Chair, PageGroun plo
- Ser or Indepcondent Director,
endsen o

i Huntewo tn pic
Narm Execut ve Director, Wi Hill oiz
']r Cabe & Wireless Woridwide pic

- Ciet Exec atve, Toyor Netsor Sofres

Johnny Thomson
Chief Executive Officer

Joined
Ferruary 2019

Current external oppointments:
- None

Relevant skills and experience:

- 228 ndustricl

LTCIS

Fingncia’ ond Rsk Maragement
- Operaticrs and Customer Servioe
- STrote:y

- M&L gnd Fingncin
- mtermationgt Basn

S

ru 7§

33

Past uppomtments'
Urcup Finarice qve”“'
Corpass Group Pu

- Regienal Mcmoq G o
Ame’.cc, Comrpacs

Chris Davies
Chief Financial Officer

Joined
Novernoer 2022

Relevant skills and experience
- Rewgi and PTG Sectars
- Fr i & Fler Manogeme”

 Distribution and Se e

Anne Thorburn
Senior Independent Director & Audit Chair

Joined
Senterber 2078

Current external appointments:
- Nen-Faecative Director and Shalr of the
Audit Comm tee, TT Eectrorics plc

Relevant skills and experience:
228 ndustria and Maorufactur ng S5ectons
- =narigl gng Fise Marnagement
- Strategy ’
- MEA and Tnanc g
- Internctic na Bue ress

Past oppomtmentS'

Cret Frons o Gife
oup b by

e Dxove Group pic

Pust appomtments




Andy Smith
Independent Non-Executive Director
& Remuneration Chair

Joined
Februany 2015

Current external appointments:
None

Relevant skills and experience'
Healtroare, Retor, PMOG ond Litintes

Geraldine Huse
Independent Non-Executive Director

Joined

Joaary 2020

Current external appointments:
- FPresident, Procter & Gomble, Conado

Relevant skills and experience:
- Retalang FMCG Sectors
- Castomor Sorvice
Scies and Marketing
- [lversty, Equity & nclision
- Orgormtsations' Development
- interrationgt Bosineis

Past appolntmentS‘
Cref tvecut e Dftirer, PRG Contt
Eu 1o e

ngi

Tnsteinut

John Morrison
Group Company Secretary
& Head of Legal

Joined

i

Committee membership

AR

Dean Finch
Independent Non-Executive Director

Joined
Mz 2020

Current external appointments:
ey

- Groop Chief Executive, Zorirrrmion PLO

It

Relevant skills and experience'
- B2Bndustra, Servcers and Rer
- Fnenos-end R fanag
- Opeat'ans and Custore:
- rleaitn & Sofety

- MES andd Finand ng

- Srotedy

- IndEr oo Bus nesy

Ly

Past appointments:
Cr'ef Bvecuti ve Hcer,
Nationa Lapress Srouz oio

- rowp Chief Execotve,

e Drelio & Gr s Thet

- Gro.pF e

Croerating

o
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Boord s responsitle to smarehaiders for
1ne Group's financia and aperationa’
performance, -isk mancgement, culture,
ond is cohectively -esponsible for promoting
the iong-ter success of the Group.

The Board iz responsible tor monitaring
progress mode agoinst strategic obectives,
approving oroposed actions and ensunng
that the copropriate interal contrals are in

piace and that they are operating effectively.

There iz o to~rar schedue of matters
reserved tor the Board which sets out the
structute snder vevch the Board rmarages
its responsioilites provid ng guidance on
how 1 discharges its authority and
rmanages the Board's activities. Tre Boorz
s assisted by three prindinal comimittess
{Budit, Norriration and Remmuneration),
each of wrien s responsitie for revewing
and aenng
terrms of referance

Sl notters witain 11w n

Matters reserved for the Board
The Board has a forrmal schedule of
matters reserved for its decisions:

purpose, strategy and management
vatues, culture and stakeholders
membership of the Board and other
appointrments

financial ond other reporting and
controls

audit, risk and internal controls
contracts and capital structure
communication

remuneration

delegation of authority

corporcte governance and other
matters

ROLES IN THE BOARDROOM }

Non-Executive Chair




BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MONITORING CULTURE

Purpose, culture and values
Tre Boord e respon
tre Group acnieves s pUTpose W
consistentiy deliver value and reward
stakeho.ders by making a eiffercnce
coelleagues, custey ers and comm
eviewing and ensuring the impe
< the Group's strategy. the Board ensures

that the obiectives of our pu'po%e ure et
whie a'so 1k ng Mo account th ws and
opportunities facng the Group.

abie for encc-ing toat

TERTITION

Tne 2018 UK Corporate Governanee Code
ftne Code) emohosises the imoortonce of
the role of the Bocrd regarding cotture, with
specific recommendations thet tne Soard
assesses and "Y'\Or‘liTDTS. Our decertrclises
model means that culture is ernpedded 'n
our busiresses, each of whick nas tc ovn
drigue aspects wreuch we pelieve are Criva’
a~d empower
undernirs e Oroup's suocess However,
there are core shared vohles across ou”
busINesses: respect, ConTinLouS
improverrent and occountan

errmme Lt aT

to the cutonon

DuL'ng the vear, the Board has moritoed
wuu'e in @ nurrkber of ways. Thic includg
Dus ness visits, preserdations from Secto:
‘eadership, strmea v rEV v 5855ins a5 el
as updates o refromtoe
Groug HR O s
cur value-add 'wﬁoae‘ requiTes Constant
evoLton, and our culture has o artoo o e
toolay T supperting drowt . When
fo“ﬂdemg acquisttion stroteges, cutera’
s also on importent ares of Tocu: ane
USSon.

Ore of the <oy ways inwricn the Boar

LR experence ond evoluole the cuture
trrough eeting witr collengues oo
Duminesses, Ye were ceighted 12 oy

the USA T Maren 2022 ond visit Wi
Wirg 0 (CHcogo and Hercules Afterrarcet
Sroup

e. The resute of our

have alsc

[ lra Ty
oy

How the Board monitors culture

The Board

~ Prezentatin-g by the Groep HE Direct
- Sector and funcien preseriatons

- Emrpicyee emaagemnent sy
- Site visits

- Board Comrrittees

ar

ey

DO TTRES ¢

Our Bowrd s oy an

mportant rele inomonto ng Lhrore:

- Remuneraticr Jr-'v ttee receives
updates trom 1oe Groun AR Director that
provide an oeer.aw m‘ Doy structares
across the Grouz and ther giignment
with our purpose, volues and strctegy.
Tris @llows the Carmrmattes o encure that

IVl

interngl

ternial

oumt bc b of we

ication of cuture, porticaarly homing
afela g eqo;@eeﬁ ts thet don't
align w ththe Qrous s cotore

Employee engagement
The B

Athenrolo

o O
the Qrouns Jetestransad m
QeogiagT:
comtimued
NOTRTIL OO
TOr 07 grouk

weel informec o Collea Jue
trers ard uses a e B at,
comply with the Jode's

maotters ¥
welbeing and marale hay
keen tocus.

- Co!!eague, torent ang cu ture updates
fror the Group HR Drectar.

- TmeRemuneglion Lommitioe reviews
workforce poy practices across Diplorna

- T~e Boord reguiany undertares site v sits,

- Execut've Board merrners reguatly
interact with indivdoal busiresses and
our Hat stroctare ensures sirong chonnels
of commmunication.

- Tre Board wos presented with the
outcomes of the Group Calleague
Engogerrent Survey and distussed these
togethe wtn key earnings. We were
deighted witr 1ne Fagh po”{cipotior\ ‘ate
and epgagement index score! the Fuil
results of the survey ore detai'ed on poges
3610 3
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Sat oot balow are sore of the voy ootivitee motiers considerss and deciaors made by the Board in the yeor.

Strategy & strategic execution

gIERGI I
stthe stroteay
o taker in respect of
sandemic.
the Corporata
er 1 Director and Scator
leadarstip on sttategic priontios ana
execticn ogainst those priotities,
Reviewed and discussed cur ESG strategy
and opprooch, Delieorimg Vaolug
Responsit
Reviewed and approved the Oreap's
ME L and business develspriers
activities, reorganisations arsd varic s
other projects.
Strateqy review session

Finance

20%

. =oes on the Group's finoncial
= 70T T

Lpproves the 2023 budget; menitored
~erformmance against the 2022 budget
trrough regular presentations from the
Cro.
Assessed and approved the propesed
dividend payments, balancing the views
of various stakeholders.
irvestor relations: received reqular reports
inclLding share register moverment and
teedback from analysts and investors.
Presentations from Tax and Treasury
Furctions
Control of Treasury and Tax policies.

Operations

S
10%

Reg..1ar updates from the CEC.
Monitored and discussed the impact
of Covid-19 on the Group's operaticns.
Modern Slavery Statement.

Sector presentations.




Cofleagues & culture

15%

- Reviewea Group Cellesgue Erngagerment
Survey.

- Received reports o workforce weilbeing
throughout the year.

- USA site visite,

- Tolerm and succession vpdate.

- Whiistleblowing reports.

15%

Received reports on the macroeconomic
environme~t, world events and emerging
trends,

Annual risk review: review of principal
risks to ensure they remain appropriate
together with mitigating activity;
reviowed and approved the inclusior

of new and emerging risks.

Quarterly risk upaates.

Cybersecurity briefing.

Annual Insurance Review.

Governance

15%

Fevie

oo

yoday 216310035
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Member

Ene Thorburn 5/5

(Chair)
Andy Smith

Geraldine Huse

Dean Finch

The role of the Committee

The Audit Committee is respansible for
ensuring that the Group mointains o strong
control envirorment. It provides effective
governance over the Group's finarcial
reporting, including oversight and review
of the systerms of internal control and risk
manogemert, the performance of internal
and external audit functions, as well as the
behaviour expected of the Group's
ernployees throuah the whistleblowing
policy and similar codes of conduct. The
Cormmittes continues 1o focus on
monitoring ond cverseeing manggement
on these improvemeants 1o governance,
compliance and financial safeguards.

Yerms of reference can be found on
our website at www.diplomaplc.com

102 Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022

Meetings attended

K

5
=2 AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

ey matters discussed

Reviewed and agreed the scope of gudit
work to be undertaken by the external
auditor and agraed the terms of
engagement and fees to be pain for the
external audit.

Reviewed the Annaal Report & Accounts
and recerved reports from the CFG and
the external auditar on the key
accounting issues ond areas of significant
‘udgernent.

Reviewad the report on compliance with
the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018
and reparts on the provision of
information to the auditor.

Revieved the report from the CFO on the
controls in place to mitigote fraud risk.
Reviewed the Half Year Anrouncement
and received reports from the externaf
auditor on the key accounting ios s v
areas of significant judgermer?
Raviewed the trading update:s.
Reviewed the effectiveness o tha !
internal control and risk mearc
procedures and where apr
recommandations to the 5

tar improvernent.

Invited the Group internal /. L

ic cttend meetings 1o rev' =

of the internal audit work

vear and 1o agree the 5y ies
internal audit work to be caric
fellowing year.

Revievwed the UK Cormpers

Code 2018 and future r-

section 172 Companies

Approved the Committoo wor
prograrmme for 2023.

Approved the Going (e

Staternents.

Continued to monitor <

oudit reform and che

Received training anc

external advisors on

reporting reguiremer:

Oversaw the audit port =




Dear Shareholder

The Audit Cormmittes ase
ciscnarging s respor Tes vt eaora 1
rmonitonng the integrity ot Group firancial
recorting, external and iterna’ audits and
controls, This noludes advising on the
reappeintment ond mosper.oence St
external auaitors and assessing the coaity
of their services, ard redewing the
effectiveness and appoonateness of the
Company's internar audt activities, internal
contiois and manogeent cystems.

ststhe Boord in

Durng the year ended 30 September 2022,
the Committee has ensured tnct it hos had
oversiaht of all these areaz while aiso
focusing on diverse cranges in the externa:
environrnent, both regulatory and political,
including any continued residua impact

of the Covid-19 pandemic which has nad

a -ange of implicciions o7 the risk
maonogement acth ties of tie Com~pany,

“Adapting to
a changing
environment and
new ways of working
to ensure financial
integrity and robust
and effective internal
controls.”

The Cormmities continuss Lo moniton tne
certainties aris’ns Trom these changes
and zensider tne rmanagement and
~itigotion of 1hese nisks. In addition, the
Commities h selved reports on internal
oldrts for the Group's ausinesses, togother
with severas deep dive sessions including
inrespect of sudits of recently acauired
businesses, 0s well 25 updates on the steps
eing aker 1o uddress internal cudit
findings and control issues.

Czormmented - last year's report thot the
Committee was mindful of the changing
goveinonce wondscape and potent-al weight
of ant cipotec reguiation in the near future,
Jiven the number of recent formal reviews
undertake~ regording differert aspects of
COrDorate governangs and audit market
reform e particuler, we nate the UK
aovernmment’s Lroposed teforms 10 1he aud
ond corporate gave nance regime which
veere pubiisted on 31 May 2022 ond which
include tne creation of a news regulater for
e audt industry and increased disclosure
requireents in respect of internal controls.
I anticipation of these reforms and under
tne suervisior of the Comrmrittee,
management has started plonning for
expected changes, including prelminary
steps indetermining the scope and confents
2t the Company’s audit and assurance policy.

has alse monitored

i tiotves of other reguiatory authorities

o prov'de investors with consistent,
zorrparable and -ehiakie information on
cimate-r2igted ana ESG matters. We are
suppertive of regulaticn trat enabies
migred investient dedisinne and sunpart
efforts to encourage harmonisation across
eguOTC Ty reg T es.

The Commmittes

As Audit Chair, | ave regular conversatiors
with the CFO, Grour interno Audit Director,
Group Financial Contoler, Group Comrpany
Secretany & Head of _ego ond alsz the cudit
cartrer at PricewoterhouseCoopers LUP
(7w, our externg. g.c.tor

Pw(C hos now completed s Hftn fulk annua
cycle, and we value the -igour and chalenge
of “ts approach o plecsed 1o report that
ogain there have been no sigrihcant comtrol
deficiencies or account ng ireqularities
reported 1o the Committes this vear. Tne
Committee pions to commence o retender
process for the audit during 202672027 for
the FYZ28 Annua Report and Accounts in
order 1o maxe any necessary changes 1o
providers of other services in a timely andg
orderty fashion and to copcint ar suditor
before the stat of thot year s this is InTthe
best imterests of our sharenclders. 1 am
confident that the Audit Committee nas
carried out its duties effectivery and to @
nigh standard during the year, providing
independent oversight with the support

of nanagerrent and assurance from the
axterns' auditors. inaccordance with UK
regutaticns, PwC odheres 1o o rotation
poicy based on bast practice and the Groug
engagement pactnar will serve a period of
ac longer than five yeais. Ching Burais
becarne the lead oudit portner for tne veor
ended 30 Septernber Z01E following tne
appoint ent of FwC, and therefore this wil
be tws finst audit,

Hiook forward 1o meeting charencldears at
the Annual Gererar Meeting on 18 Janua-y
2023 and will be noppy to respond to any
gueactions reloting 1o 1he activities of the
Audit Commitres.

Anne Thorburn
Chair of the Audit Committee
21 Noevember 2022

yoday 216830138
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Audit Committee

The Cormnmittee is choired by Anme Tharburn
ond comprises four Independent Non-
Executive Directors. The Committee acts
independent!y of the Execut've Directors
and management. Qur members have

a range of skills and the Committee as a
whote has experience relevant to the Sectors
in which the Group operates. Anne has
recerit and relevant financial experience,

as required by the Code.

The Group Company Secretary & Head of
tegal acts as Secretary 10 the Commitrze.
The Executive Directors alse attend
Comrmittee meetings and subject motter
experts are invited 1o present on spec.fic
topics as and when required. The
Cammiittee met with the externai auditor
during the year, without the Executive
Directors being present.

The Audit Committee confirmrs that the
Company has complied with the provis ons
of the Competiton & Markets Authority
Order throughout its financiol vea- ended
30 Septernier 2022 and up 1o the date of
this report,

Financial reporting and significant

financial judgements and estimates

The Committee considered and assessed:

- the full year and haif year results, and
trading updates for recommendation
to the Board;

- the cppropriateness of accounting
policies and practices, as weil as critical
accounting estimates and key
udgerments; and

- whether the Annual Report, taken os
a whoie, is fair, balarced ana
understandople and provides the
informgtion necessary for sharehelders
to assess the Group's oasition and
performance, business model ana
strategy.

Renort 20

The Committee considered the maotters set
out below as being sigmlﬁco'\t i the context
of the consalidated financial statements for
the year ended 30 Septerber 2022, Tnese
were discussed ond reviewed with
management and the external audtor; the
Committee then chollenged judgements
and scught clanfication where necessary.

The Committee considered the judgerrents
made in preparing the financial statements,
including the accounting for acquisitions
and associated valuation of intangible
sesets, the provisions for excess and
slew-Toving inventary, The pote=ticl for
mpairment of goodwll and the

oropricteness of the Going Concern
assumption, The Committee olsa eviewed -
the mevernents in the Group's defired
benefit pension schemes.

Accounting for acquisitions and
disposals

Tre Committes reviewed tm& scoounting
far acquistions completed during the year,
in part culor the aoquisitions of R&E Fluid
Pewer Group and Accuscience The

acqu sitions were matenal for the FY22 gudit
cnd, In accordance with iFRS 3 (Business
Comoingtions), mmonageTent hag
performed o TuE “air value ﬂxe'f‘se far trese
twso aroqais tioms i this vear's finand
statements. A: natt of 1neir ou
Oroup, the external auditor kas performed
work ¢

o the Purchase Price Aligcation {PRPA;

ol the opening ba\orsye sheet as gt the
acs. sitien dote; and
<) oudit of any materic
adiustraents arsing
oalance sheet.
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The Group completed two disposols in

the year for combined proceeds of £21m
resuiting in a net profit on disposal of £7.3m.
The profit on dispasal has been presented
within ocguisition and other reiated tems.

Provisions for excess and slow-

moving inventory

The Comrittee reviewed the report of

the CFO thot set out the gress balonces,
1ogether with any related provision against
the carrying value of inventery. The
Committee reviewed the bases used 1o
valde inventory held across the Groug; they
olso consdered the appropratenass of
provisions held cgainst the carrying volue
of inventory, having regard to the age and
volumes of inventory relative to expected
usage and considering the actions taken in
response T supply chain disruptions during
the year and any continued impact of the
Covid-19 pandern'c.

Foliowing 1ts review, which alse nciuded
conciderction of tne externar audit findings,
the Commitiee conc-uded that the
provision for excess and slow-maoving
inventory is apprograte.,

Impairment of goodwili

The Committee cons'dered the carrying
valse of goodwill and the assurrptions
anderlying tne impa rment review. 1he
Judgements in reiation to goodwil
impairment ‘argely relate to the
assumptions underying the coletlatons of
the valug i1 use of the casn-genergting units
(CGUs) peing tested for imparmenit. These
judgements are prmarily ‘me caculation of
the discount rates, which hove increased
due to rising risk free rates ond the cost of
debt, the ochievability of rmanagernent’s
forecasts in the shost 1o medium term
against the backdron of a challenging
MQCIORCCNCITIC enyvrenmment, resid Lai
impaczt of tne Cov'd-19 pondemic and the
selection of the ong-1erT growth rate,
Foiowing the révicw, wh.ch 2so inciuded
considerotion of the externc audit Sndings
the Committes conc'uoed thot the carrying
wawe 3 Ine goodao recorded ' oo opT ote




Other audit matters

Tre Comimittee olso considered other less
Smarelal matters incucing the valuation of
the Group's detined benefit ccherme and the
impoct of the key actuorial assumiptions on
the boignces. The Committee 5 satisfied
witn tne year end postion and the
assuTPLons wsed,

Ir addition to the above, tne Committee
aiss seeks comments from the auditor on
whether tne Oroup's businesses follow
appropricte policies to recogrise mcterial
streams of revenue, and their aucit work
caried out more gere-aliy has assessed
whether there is any evidence of
rmanagement override of key internal
contross designed to guard agoinst froud
OF matenal misstaternent

As part of s monitoning of the irmearity

of the financial staterments. the Corr.mwttee
revigwss vehether suitanie occounting
policies hove been adopted and whether
managensent has made anpropricte
estimates and judgements, and seeks
sLoport from the external audite

assess therr.

Going Concern and Viability

The Going Concern and Yiakiity Gssessment
was prepored by management. In preporing
he gscessment, mor\ogemeﬂt carried cut
TeVErse siress *e:fmg as wel as scenario
analysis Two scenanos were considered

- the boge case and tre downside case, The
base cese reflects actual recent trading anc
takes account of any further residual impact
of Covia-19. The downside case refiects a
TOTE signiﬁcam decline in trading, adverse
maovements in working capita: and ioveet
than Torgcast cperating Marging ond is
nisidered by manogement to be asevere
GLSID-E SC2NATIC,
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Sioun nas g liguid ty and covenont
‘Odrc':-ﬁ” i~ eocn scenans for Lotk Go'ng
sacerts o d Vion ity Statemment purposes.
o fudt lomrttee redswed the
Jniderpinn

[asTasetalats i3 ench scenono

sepect of
v Furtmier detail
Nt Thie

Jut o7 poge B9
neern Lan be

Engagement of the external auditor

The external aud'tor is engaged 10 exXpress
ar opinon on the finarcial statements of
*he Group and of the Comipanry. The audit
Er‘ciude< the consideratios of the systems

of intermail irancial contra! and the data
contained i~ the finarnzial stotements, 1o
the extemt necessary for expressing an audit
opinion on the truth and ‘arness of the
financial statements.

During the yea, the Comimttee carred out
an GSSGSS“ﬁDm af the cudit process, led oy
the Chair o the Committee and assisted by
the CFQ. The gssessment focused on certdin
criteria that the Commintee cons'dered to
be impertant factors in demonstrating an
effective audit process. These factors
included the guality of the audit process
and the robustness of chalienge to
managenent, key audit tisks and how 1nese
have been addressed, the ptanning and
execution of the aLdit and the role of
nanagenent in the audit process.

The Cormmittes was satishied that the
PuwiZ audit of the Company and Groun had
provided a robust and effect:ve oudit and
an appropriate independent chakenge of
the Group's senin” rmanagement, It alse
suppoted the work of *)"L— “omitiee
thiough clear and ohyective communication
on developrents in financial reporting

and governance

The Cormm ties aiso over scw “he a.dit
partner rotation process as Chris Burns, the
current ead auait partner, 1 Cue to rotate

after this FY22 vear end. A replocement hos
veen identifed and has been shodow ng the
audit process 1o ensire ¢ srocth handover.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Non-audit services

The Committee has approved the Group's
internal guidelines covering the type of
non-audit work that can be carried out by
the external auditor of the Group, in light

of the regulation set out in the £U Audit
Directive and Audit Regulation 2014 (the
Regulations) and the Financial Reporting
Council (FRCY Revised Ethical Standard 2019,

Tne Reguiations substantially curtail those
nor-oudit services that can be provided by
the auditor to the Group and in particu'ar
prohinits ol tax related services, including
compliance services as wel s general
advice and all consutancy ond advisory
services. The Regulctions stipulote thot
Boaord approval is reguired if eligible
mon-audit services, such as due diligence
ond simitar assurance services, exceed 30%
=f the prior year Group awdit fee and the
Cormpary may not aliow elgible non-audit
services =6 exceed 70% of the Group audit
fee, calculated an a -olling three-yea: basis.

The CFO does not have coisgoted authority
1o engage the external auditor to carry out
Ary NGA-audit wors, but must seek approval
#rorm the Cha'r of the Audit Cormittees.

Taxction servizes are ~ot crovided by the
Sroup's current audit firr; a range of
different fArrme ate used for the provision

of 1ax advice and any assiztance wth tox
cormpliance matiers generalty, in gddition,
due dligence exercises on acquisitons and
srnilar Tronsoctions gre not provided oy the
guditor, but are placed with other firmre

The externa auditor s retained 1o carry cut
assurance services 1o the Committee in
woTion witn agreed unon procedures’

(S

proeickes Broess 1o s Viewnoint
< serv'ce (21,200

Whith thie axception of these services,

PwC has not provided any non-audit
servces to the Group or its subsidiories
and has confirrmed its independence to
the Audit Cormmittee. Further information
is set out in note 25 to the consclidated
Ananciai statements,

The Cormmittee assures itsetf of the
auditor’s independence by receiving requiar
reperts flom the external auditor which
provide details of any assignments and
relgted fees cartied out by the quditor in
addition to its normal audit work, and these
ore ey ewed against the above guidelines.
PwC has reconfirmed its independence for
the ¢ urrent financial yeaor.

Risk management and internal control
The principal risks and uncertainties that
are curreritly judged to have the most
significant impact on the Group’s long-term
performance ore set out in @ separate
saction of the Strategic Report on Interna:
Control and Risk Managemert on pages
8010 88.

The Committee is responsibe for reviewing
the effectiveness of the Group's system of
internal control. The system of irterna;
ontro' s designed to manage rather than
rrinate the risk of failure 1o achieve
usiness abjectives and can only nrovide
reascnable and not absolute assurance
zqgairst material misstatement or loss.

™

o

The Grous hos the necessary procedires

e 1o ensure that there is an ongoing
process for identifying, evaluating and
~nonagng the principal risks to the Group.
These procedures ore inline with the FRC's
guidance, The Board has establisned a clear
orgomsatisng! structure with defined

Sutnerity wevels

Tre zay-to-day unning of the Group's
ousness s delegated to the Erecutive
Drectors o the Oroup who ore supporied
2y the heods of each business Sector and
“uncTona Reads of the Group

Key financial and operatonal measuras
relating 1c revence, cush and receivabres
are repoied on o weekly basis. Detaled
management occounts ano key
performance indicators are prepo-ed
monthly using @ robust oroprietary seporting
systern 1o collect ona anatyse fingncial data
N a consistent format. Montnly results are
measured against both budget and holf
year reforecasts which have been approved
and reviewed by tne Board. Al copital
expenditure above predefined armounts
must be supparted by g paper precared by
rmanagement.

Al fimandial data s teken directiy 1o each
tusiness’ tna' balance heid in their locol ERP
systern and reanalysed cnd formatted ina
separate Group ™Management repoitin
systern, operated by the Group France
departmert, Trere is ne rekeving of financia
data oy the Group Dusinesses to resort
mormthiy financial results Twe Group Finance
departrent cantinues 12 develop the
functicnalsy of s management reporting
systern 1o provide greoter insights nTe the
fnancicl ond cperaticna’ aotivises of the
Group's husingsses.

The Group's interna aud™or reaularly audis
The Dase 3Gt 0T e NLSINASS 10 ensure it
is properiy renoted tusuzh o e Sroup
management repor tirg system,

A part of the year 2nd cse © S
susiness is required te compiete a self-
assessrent That evowctes e fnancio
CONTro BNyOnMIEnT 1N Thelr pusiness
designed t¢ identifs wearnesses in controls.
“hese assessimants are cotizaly reviased
by the Group 'nrerna Audit Drectss and
evaluoted as part of reguiar intermnal

Audit reviews

Asumer ary for £ack Dunne

~anggerment of 2
to corfiry #: odn
QTCGUNT NI Do
o interng. ot

representIt or




The Cormmittes has reviewed 11e
etfectiveniess of the Group's rish
maonagement ang internal contrel systams
for tne period trom 1 October 2027 10 the
date of tis report. Taking inle account the
matters set out on pages 82 1o 38 relat'ng
to principol fisks and uncertainties and the
reports fror the Sroup internal Audit
Director, the Board, with the advice of the
Commttee, is satisfied that the Grous has
in place effective rsk managernent ond
internal contro! svstems.

Internal audit
The Grour maintains an interna audT
department which reports directly tod

The department comprises a Group Interna
Audit Director and o Groug Interna’ Auditor
based at 1he Group’s cffices in Londor,
Im daneary 2022, tme Group Internat Audit
Director preserted hiz oudit pian for the
yeor 1o the Committee torits aporoval.
Increasingly during the vear. interna: audit
undertook audits In person as travel
restrictions were lifted ir a number of key
wrisdicticors. The department continued to
effectively rely on rermote wisTs wits the use
cropricte communication tecnology
where site visits were not possib e,

The scope of work corried cut oy Internat
audit generally focuses on the interng:
financial, operational and comoliance
contrels operating within each business,
including r-sk management activities anc
bus:iness process improvernents Forma
written reports ore prepared on the results
of each imternat audit vist thot set oot
imterna: control weaknesses/ sks identitied
during ther work, together with
recormmendations 1o improve the interal
control ervironment and TiTigate trese
WEOK LRSSk S TNeSe Teparts are Timely
and reguiany discussed witn senicr
rmanagement whin the oo
are aa0 shared with the extormal a.

At the end of the financial yeor, the Group
Interpa Audt Director formioity 1eports to
the Committee on tne resuits of the internal
audit work caried out by nis cepartment
during the vear. The Committee reviews
rmanagement’s responses to ratters raised,
ncuding the time taken to resolve such
matters. Updated reports on progress
against the nian are provided at regular
intervals and the Audit Chair also meets
separately with the Group Internsi Audit
Director ot least twice a year 1o review scme
of the departrment’s reports and discuss
e Andings.

There veere no significant or high risk
~natters ioentified in tne internal audits
undertaxer during the current financial
yea. Several recommendations we'e again
made this yeor 1o the businesses in regard
1o it olernernting adeguate and effective
internal controls and procedures aimed
atimproving existng processes around
cybersecurity, inventory manageiment

and procurement.

The Committes conducted the annual
review of the effectiveness of the internat
audit department, including :ts audit plan,
general performance and relctionship vwith
the extenal ocuditors, Based on its review,
e Comimittee was sausied with the
effzctiveness of the Group's inte nal audit
function, specificaily that the internal qudit
department is sufficiently independent of
executive management and has sufficent
resouToes ONG scope that s appropriate for
tme size and natuqe of the Group.

Whistleblowing

The Cormmittee also monitors the odegquacy
of theSroup’s whistlebiowing poicy, wnich
provides 1the fromewaork 1o er courage and
give empioyees confidence 1o bow tne
whistle’ and recort irreguiarties. Tne pahicy,
together with hotine posters, are Zloced on
site noticeboards across the Group.
Ermployees are encouraged to raise concerns
via tne corfidential multibngual hotline,
which s manaaed by an independent
externa company and is avalable 24,7,

365 days a year.

All reports are provided 1o the Group
Company Secretary & Head of Legat for
review, to ensure that they ae appropriatety
investigated — with the support of internas
audit and extainal rescurce, f reguired.
Mast rmotters reported througn the
whistieblowing service relate to personnelr
HR rmatters and, while these gre not areas
for review by the Committee, such motters
are duly investigated in the same manner
as any other issue raised.

O

MBIAIIA

1oday 216330435

33UbWIaACO 23040dI0D)

]
5
a
3
a,
a
W
g
a
~+
3
®
3
-+
w

UORDWIOM] I3YLO




NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Member Meetings attended

4/4

David Lowden
(Chair}

z\ne Thorburn 5/5

5/5

Andy Smith

Geraldine Huse 5/5

Deon Finch 4/5

John Nicholas

The role of the Committee

The Mermirstion Committes reviews the
composition of the Soard and prirgipal
Committess, considenng skills, knowledge,
experience cnd diversity requirements betore
making appropriate recommendations to
1he Board regarding ary changes. L also
MmAnoges sLecession planning for Directers
and the Group Company Secretary ond
cversees succession planning for senior
leadership across the Group.

Terms of reference can be found on
our website at www.diplomgplc.com

108 Diplorma PLC Annual Report 2022

Key matters discussed

Recruitrment of a Chief Financial Officer
and broader succession planning for
Chaire of Audit and Rernuneration
Commitiec.
Ceonsderation of o detailed skills,
experiende and diversity matrix t
soucht ta identify recruitment pric
based on idantifisd gops, industry
expectations ond good practics
Facilitating a mare diverss list of pslential
canaidates ahead of the search for twa
MNon-Executive Directors by setting clear
objectives for the external search
consultants and ensuring a clear
articulation of the company's ongoing
cornmitmnent to improving diversity in role
specifications.
Consideration of the comtributions or:

stivenoss of the Non-Evecitiv:

tors seeking re-alaction ot
Annual General Meetineg, 1
recornmaeardutic 2
shareholders -




Dear Shareholder,

o pleased to set out becw the report on
the octivities or the Nomination Committee
during the yeor.

Tre Boord s of the vigw that s esseniliul
1o have an aperooriate mix of expenence,
expertise, diversity ond independence Such
Jdiverse cttributes enable the Board as a
whole to provide inforrmed opinions and
advice on strategy and reievant topics,
thereby dischorging its duty of oversight
Appomtments to the Board are made
foliowing consideration of the experence
and expertise of exsting Directors, any
required skil sets or competencies, and the
strotegic reguirements of the Group. During
2022, the campaosition of the Boord changed
stightly, reflecting: 1) John Nicholas
stepping down from the Board, and (i} the
departure of Barbara Gitbes

A fundamental rasponsioiity of the
Cormmities is 12 ensure pians are .n ploce
for orde~y succession to the Board, as wel!
as our Sroup Company Secretary and senior
management positions, and the Cormmittes
debates tnese regutarly. The main focus of
the Committee during this past year has
beer. on Board succession planning,
ncluding the appointment of our new Chis!
Financial Officer and the search for the
Chairz of tne Audit and Remunerotion
Corrimitiees 10 ensure these posticns are
apponited in tirme for an orderly nendover.
The Comrmittes cortinually monitors the
balance onthe Board to ensure we have the
right cembniation of skils, experience and
krowledge consistert with the long-term
strategy of the Compary. Thic aiiows us to
dentty where further focus is needed in the
£amung vears and beyond.

We are mis tof the discussions around
miproy ng diversity and inclusion, together
itk the torgets set oy the Harpion-
Alexander Review and the Parker Roview,
Folhowing the deportuie of Baroora Gibbes
3t the erd of the finoncion vear, tveo out ©°
severs Dracrore (28 57%) are veormen, It s
the Baard's @' To mmest the targets set Dy

= Hareston-Alesander and Parke: revieves,
g it o ethnic diversity

B

The Board will maintain oversignt of the
range of activties the Sioup is pursen
aimed at incrensing the diversity of cur
wiolkforce including the executive pipeine
that is essentimi for Executive Director
succession planming We have writter
elsewhere (see poge 40) chout sur Group-
wide approach to diversty and inclusion,
which emgnates from the Beard ana
impacts the approocts of the Noemination
Committee.

[in]

The FRC's guidance on poard effectiveness
recognises o readth of divers'ty thot goes
beyond just gender and race. ano includes
personal atir'outes nciuding inteliect,
critical assessment, judgement, courage,
hanesty and tact; and the obiiity o listen
and forge relationships and deveiop trust.
This ensures that o board s not comotised
of like- minded individuais. Tre Comimittee
agrees thot diversity is vitor when review ' ng
e compositizn of the Boord and setting
the criteria for the recrutment of new
appeointees, alongside succession planming
activities. External search consuitants are
expected to maxe evely effort to put
forward diverse candidates for new Boz-d

rositions. Wrilst appointments will cortinue

to pe made on merit and agoinst ol'ective
crteria. it rermarins the Commities's
intention thot the diversity on the Boord
will continge 1o increqse over tima.,

The Cormrettee has also manta’ned te
Tocus on the executive succession cipeine
and senicr manggement succession o ons

within the Group, reflecting its responsibivity

to ensure approphiate plane are = pace

David Lowden

Chair of the Board and Nominction
Committee

21 November 2022

“Ensuring the right mix
of skills and
experience to deliver
long-term value for
our stakeholders.”
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NOMINATICN COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Nomination Committee

The Nemination Committee s chaired oy
David Lowden, Board Chair. The Committee
comprises the Non-Executive Directors and
meets as necessary to discharge its
respansibilities

The Group Company Secretary acts as
Secretary to the Committee.

The Committee reviews the composition

of the Board ond principal Committees,
considering skifls, knowledge, experience
and diversity requirements before making
approsricte recormnmendaticns to the Boord
regarding any changes. It alse marages
succession plonning for Directars and tne
Group Company Secretary, and oversees
succession planning for semior leadership
across the Group.

The Committee’s role and responsibilities are
set out in its Terms of Reference, wnicn were
reviewed during the year and approved by
e Board.

Process for Board appointments

. ) - Cmer ae

Induction and professional development
The Chair, assisted by the Group Company
Secretary, is responsibie for ensuring that
there is a propenly constructed and timely
induction for new Directors upon joining the
Board. Upen appointment, ofi new Directors
are provided with a comprehensive
induction, where they rmeet wit~ key
rnembers of rmancgement and farmiiiarise
thermselves with ail core aspects of the
Group, its businesses and the rnarkets in
which it operates.

Directors are encouraged, wherever
possibie, to visit the GroLp's sites so Mot
they can get o better understonding ot
the business and interact with employees.
While travel was restricted and complex
during the Covid-19 pandemic, site visits

by individual Directors (and the Board as

o whole) have resumed and allowed
Directors 10 see Diplormna’s safery and
sustainobiiity processes, to talk with loca:
menagement and workferces and 1o assess
how effectively Disloma’s culture is
communicated and embedded ot sl levels.

The Char alen haos tne responsiblity of
ensuring that Directors receive training o0
a continuct basis in support of thelr ongeing
development. This training is provided by
way of techical updates, reports and
briefings prepared for Board meetings.
Directors hove “ull access 1o our corporate
advisors as well as a regular ard
comprehensive supply of financial,
operational, strategic and regulatory
information to help thern discharge their
responsibilities.

During the year, the Board held a strategy
review session 1o confirm: the Company’s
stramegic gools as well as receiving detciled
updates on operations and support
functions.

Step 1

The Committee
reviews and
approves an
outline brief and
role specification
and appoints o
search agent to
facilitote the search

il =t atol s

Step 2

A Cormmittee
member

discusses the
specification with
the independent
search ogent, who
prepares an initial
lenglist of
candidates

IalaY
LT 2o

Step3

The Committee
then defines a
shortlist of
candidates and
we hold interviews

Step 4

The Committee
makes a
recornmendation
1o the Board for its
consideration

Step 5

Following Board
approval the
appointment is
announced in line
with the
requirements of the
FCA's Listing Rules
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of our new Chair
concet vt L sointed Booed Chair

Calendar of activities

SIUAWAIDYS jb!ououu

November 2021 January 2022 March 2022 April 2022

Meeting al! Board Handover with Visit to Windy Chair Q&A
colleagues, both outgoing Chair City Wire in published in the
individually and Chicago, and Purple Portal, the
collectively Hercules Group’s newsletter
Aftermarket in
Meeting Group Louisville in the USA
heads of functions
Visit to Shoal Group,
IS Group and
Clarenden in
the UK
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Onboarding processes

The decentralised nature of the Group has
atways made induction processes compiex.
The pandernic led us to reconsider how
these processes can be conducted
effectively. Customarily there would nove
been face-to-face meetings with key
executives and management, introductions
to their direct reports, one-to-ones following
the initicl meetings, and site visits arranged
1o key businesses. Now parts of the
induction plan are conducted via video calis;
particularly where key pectle are located
outside of Europe. This permits Directors to
have considerably greater exposure tc the
varicus businesses and personnel and we
are pleased that we car once again
encourage Directors to visit our businesses
and appreciate our culture and colleagues in
person as wei as continuing to develop thelr
understonding of ench bosiness

Succession planning

The Committee formally reviews succession
pianning for the Board, Group Company
Secretary and Head of Legal, ond senior
managernent at feast once each year,
taking into account the chalienges and
opportunities facing the Group and the
background, skills and expertise that will be
requiced by the Group in the future. During
2022, following the appointment of the new
Board Chair, the Cormnmittee undertock o
more thocugh anclysis of the Board's
comnpetencies. The Committee also
considerad how the Board would be required
to evolve to be fit for the future, as well as
any potential gaps that moy need to be
fibed through succession or training.

The CEO manages the deveiopment of
stccess o plans for executive
rmonagerment, and these are overseen by
the Corrmittee. The CEO a~d Group HR
Director presented ¢ succession picnmmg
update to the Boord in January 2022,

The Comrittee is aware of the importance
of identifying critical roles within tne
businesses to ensure we retain and motivote
key talent and have the necessary skilic for
the future. Overcll, it was ciear that we have
a good executive and manogement
SUCCESSION plonnng process and,
irmmportartly, siccession is being actively
rmaonaged by the Executive team to achieve
the desired long-term outcomes.

The standard term for Non-Executive
Directors is three years, They normally serve
for a maximum of rine years, which iz solit
across three terms of three years each. Al
Directers are subject tc annuai re-election.
With only specific excepticns that moy be
necessary to ensure Board continuity,
Non-Executive Dirrectors shell not stand for
re-e ection after they have served for the
period of their independence, ac determire
by opphcatve UK standards, of nine yeare

Léngth of tenure
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David Lowden

Andy Srrith

Anne Thorburn

Gerald ne Huse

Dean Finch
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Board evaluation
Tme Board conducts an annual evaluation of its

pe-formance and thot of s committees an
an independert third -po-ty faciktatlor 1o assist in th's process every three vears. For tne year ended 30 Septernber 20
tre Boa-d as a whele ard of s cornmittees wos undertaken internai

d. in accordance with good proctice, engoges
722, the evaiuation of
. led by the Boora Chair. Board members completed guestionnaires

regording the operaticn and cffectiveness of the Board ond its committees. Findings were colioted by the Group CO"ﬂpOﬁy Secretory and

the Board Chair discussed the conclusions and recommendations sep

ararely witt eoch Director

The performance of the Non-Executive Directars was reviewed by the Board Chair. The performance of the Executive Directors was

reviewed by the Board Chair and the Nor-Executive Directors and the results of the 2022 evaluction process were corsidered by the Board.
rwell, and the cnboarding of the Boord nad beer weil received, resuiting in
and workplans. Directors operoted inan meﬁ-sphere of open and constructive debate with o good

The conclusion was 1hat the Boacd continued to functio

improvernent to Board processes

breadth of skills, experience, and viewpoints. Fol'owing the evaiuation. the beiow recommendations were made:

Recommendation

Action

Consider the diversity of the Board, frorr both a gender and
ethnicity standpoint.

Nomination Committee 1o address diversity reguirermnents n
succession pranmng and during the Non-Executive Director
recruitment process

Continue to challenge ard support o0 the progress oF DVR actions

Consider £SG skil sets during the Non-Frecotive Director recruitment
noof on E50 Committes as well as enhonced focus on

process, cregtic
cunote-reiotes *"\'wc:r‘*la’ fisks,

Irmprove informaticn shared with the Boord to enhanze visibility on
certain topics and irmprove decision-making.

Board papers to include executive sumimaries to bring focus to
discussions, a~d Sector presentations to the Board 1o include key
indicators of customer and supglier performance.

The Compony expects 10 update sharehclders on the orogress micde in relation to the matters identfied above Inits 2023 Annual Report.

Key areas for development

The below recommendations were rmacde follow: ing the 2027 externa Board performonce evaluation,

Recommendation

Action

Consider increasing the size of the Board and tringing in furt-e-
skills relevant 1o D Hiumc's size and agerotions.

Nomunation Commtee revieved the composition of toe Boord
ond incorporated thic nto succession planning.

Boarg train'ng prograrmme 10 be evoived,

Addtiong sessions includes as ot oF cnnua ca'enaar as well os
; ke sess dvisors ac required.

m
5]
v
o
3
"
+
%
o

Erripioyee engagement 1o be reviewed

noreased nunber of site visits, wth Nor-Executve Directors
noducting these ind vidua'y on sccasion and oroviding feedback
1o the Board,

Board scnedule to be reviewed.

Board dinner 'nthe everyng pricr toomeertings included 10 cover
specific areas of foc us or concer ond permt further niorma
ENo0geT.e Tl w it ke managenent.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Member
Andy Smith {Chair)

Meetings attended
6/6

6/6
/6

Anne Thorburn

David Lowden

Geraldine Huse 6/6

Dean Finch 6/6

John Nicholas 11

The role of the Committee
The Cormmittee, on behalf of the Boarg,
agrees oll aspects of the remuneration
of the Executive Directors. It agrees the
strategy, direction, and pelicy framewark
for the rermuneration of the senior

cutives whio have significant inffuence
over the Group's ability to meet its strotegic
ohjectives. The Commitise olse oversses
all workforze remureration policies.

Terms of reference can be found on
our website ot www.diplomaoplic.com

114 Diplerma PLC Annual Report 2022

Key matters discussed

- Approved Remuneration Comimittee work
prograrmme for 2022,

- Reviewed the AGM 2022 votes on the 2021
Remuneration Caommittee Repart.
Reviewed and proposed the new
Directors’ Remuneration Policy, and as o
result, proposed amendments 1o the 1
of the Diploma PLC 2020 PSF
Approved the service contiact for the
new CFO,

Approved annuat performancs bonus
targets and the subseqguent bonus awards
“or 2022,

Approved new Performance Share Plan
(PSP) awwards for Executive Directers and
Graup senior managernent.

Confirmed the vesting percentages for
the PSP awaords made in December 2019,
which crystallised in 2022,

Reviewed Executlive Diractors’ salaries,
pensions, and benefits,

Reviewed the fees of the Chair and
Non-Executive Directors.

Reviewed rernuneration framework -
Executive Team and senior monaguir ot
in the operating buzinesses.

Reviewed workforee remuneraticn
framewnork.

Approved the 2027 Rermuneratic:
Cormmittee Report.




Dear Shareholder

L5 Chair o7 tne Board Rermuneration
Cormmtres {Coammittes,, am pieased 1o
prasent our Directors’ Rermuneration Report
{DRR o the year ended 30 Septerrber
2022 Ciic vur revised Rerrungration Polivy
for which shareholder appreval wili be
seught at the January 2023 AGM.

Context and approach to remuneration
Cur peop’e lie ot the heart of our success.
As our business grows and becomes more
complex. cur peopie, teame and
argarisat-on must arow with it 1t is vital
that we have the right colibre of people and
AT we ncentivise excele~t performance
ane reward tham woen they do. On page
118, Diplomma's approach 1o rermuneration

is 2lustrated showing now strategy,
perforance and teward abgn. in g
decantralised Group, we work hard to
balance glignment with local cccountabilty
and agitty, Du- reward pelicies and
practices hove supported the growth of the
Buginess well over the vears, During this
policy penod, our performance has cee™
excel and cu talented management
team have Joubled the size of the business

“Reinforcing alignment
of strategy and
reward, 2022 was
a very strong year
of performance,
strategic execution
and consequently
reward. Long
term growth and
shareholder returns
are excellent.

Our plans remain
ambitious and we are
pleased to set out our
Remuneration Policy
for the next phase

of growth.”

It is agoinst this bockdrop that vee have
considerad our rermunerat.on policy for the
upcorming three years.

2022 performance and pay

The Diplorma Tearr has delivered onothe-
vear of strong financial resutts, adding to
the Group's long-term track ~ecord o~
excellent business performance and
shareholder returns Organic growth hos
een driven by revenae initiatives, positive
demand, ond pricing. Alcngside this,
impiementation of our strotegy continues
apace w'th the acguisition of new
businesses 10 bring new capabilities and
opportunities to drive future organic growth.
With regards to scaling, it hos been a vear
of excellent progress building nfrastructure
‘or scale, developing the target operating
maodel, and evolving the structures,
capabiity and culture of the Group.

Excellent oelvery ogainst our strotegic
priorities of growth, scoling and Delivering
Value Responsibly have resulied in strong
performance (shown in toble on page 119).
Adjusted operating profit (+29%), reported
revenue (+29%) and free cash (+11%)

oli exceeded annucl bonus targets (on page
130}, resulting in a full bonus payrment of
125% of salary for both Jonnny Tromsen
and Barbara Gibbes.

Our long-term performance CONLiNLES 10
create excelent shgreholder returns. Our
threg-year compound annual growth rate
{CAGR) for adjusted earnings per share
{(EPS) s 19%. This exceeds the performance
Target maximurn of 145, cnd the return

on adiusted tradi~g cepital empioved
(ROATCE) e 17.3% meoning that the
uvnderpin applying to out PSP s in line with
e Oroup’s financg’ mode and rmeets the
Bozrd's expectation. Qur relotive three-year
total sharehoder return (TSR} performance
o ir the %st percentile of FTSE 250

componies iexcluding financa services and
nvestment trusts), ranking 15 out of 158
—ompanies. Based on these excellent results,
whe Pertormance Shere Plan PSP (PSP
(20'97 has vested ot moxmum for Johnny
Thomesos and Bo bara 3 boes, as well os alf
ctrier PSP participante,

o

Johmny Thomrsen's total commpensation
for 2022 {shownir tne Sngle Fioure tabe
onpage 129, s £38m 202185 2m), Tne
difference versus lost year s rmainiy due
o iowe thare pnice appreciation,

1 hne with the Code, the Commirtes
raviewed individual Directors’ incentive
plan cutcemes and overal rermrureration
considerng the Group's underlying
cerformance, We have not made any
adiustments to our remuneration schemes
as ¢ resuit of Cownd, ne funiough support
weass taken, and no discretiorar adjustments
nave Deen apphed to outoomes,
Aczordingly, the Committee is satistied
that the ‘ncentive pian outcormes and the
total remuneration rece ved by Exective
Directors in "espect of the year ended

30 Septernber 2022 are cansistent with the
ievels of company performarice delivered
and that tne Rermunerotion Policy i
opesrgting as intendec.

Appointment of new CFO

Chric Davies joined Diplora az CFC on

i MNovernber 2022 ofter Ba-bara Givbes

et the Cormpany on 30 September 2077

Having plaved an mmportant role in helping

te steor Diplomiag through the pandeic and
vilding strong foundations for the futl

trie Committes deterined 1o treat Bars

as a good leaver and her remuneration

crrangements on deporture wee in

accordonce witn the Rermuneration Pobcy

and plar tutes. Her exit arrangenmers

set cut o page 129,

We arpzinted Crris foicwing a tharough
pracess, whicn conis'dered interna’ and
exierna candidates. Diploma was Barba-a's
first F7SE Board apnointrnert and her
;}Gckcge was set accerdingly. Creis’ packoge
s COTmMensrate with his experience s an
established JFO wth ar excellent track
record in decentral sec
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

the remuneration foregone inciuding the
nature, vesting dates and performance
requirerments attached to that
remuneration and payments will not exceed
the expected vaiue being forfeited. Exact
amounts will be finglised folloveing the
publication of his previous ermployer’s results
and will be disclosed in next year’s DRR.

Remuneration in the workforce

The skill and dedication of Diploma’s
colleagues lie at the heart of our success.
The Group achigved outstanding levels of
coileague engagement again this year
imore inforrmation o page 36 to 37].
Rermuneration in Diploma provides a caretul
balance that enab es local decision- making
in line with our decentralised business
rmodel, whilst ensu-ing guidance and
governance from the Group, and including
aseview of pay eauity. whichiis ane of the
Group's ESG oriorites.

The CEO pav ratic for 2022 {detail on pege
135) has reduced frorm 18071 10 1291 The
principal reason for the reduction is icwer
share price appreaiation - om market
movements, The medio~ poy for UK
colleagues has remained at a similar level

20,074 {2021 £29,036). with t-e addition
of ca. 400 new ernployees frorm LUK
acquisitions. |f we exclude ermpicyees whe
joined through acquisitions, the median
pay for the UK werkforce has ncreased
margina'ly 1o £2%.550.

This year's Groug reward guicarce 15 the
businesses focused on looking after
colleagues. The first priority waos focusing on
cefleagues affected by inflationary pressures
arising from the macro-ens-onment,
inciuding erergy prices ard ctrer ris.ng
rests of iving. For wne firsttire the Droup's
governance incluaes aningecendent review
of collzagues in cwer pad roles =847k per
annurmy, and these fo'iza :
average norecse of 7

TeMUNEratian s TRCDIN T L7 DT e
PET R
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Tne 2022 overall bose salory increase across
the Group is 7% for the workforce (2021,
4%, including senior managers, The
managerment team and Committee will
continue to review tatal compensation
proactively in order 1o ensure our wider
workforce is *airly rewarded, The Committee
considers workforce perspectives when
setting Rermuneration Folicy, Executive
Director compensation and overseeing
senicr Management compensation
fromeworks.

Remuneration policy review

The Committee cornpieted o
comprehensive policy review in 2022. The
review process is set out on page 120 and
covered o number of key factors.

The Group has increased considerably in size
and compiexity in this policy perioa (shown
inthe diagrar on page 120). Since the
appaintnent of our CEOQ in 2019, the Group
has doubied in size frem a combination of
strong organic growth, strategic execution
and the acguisition of 25 strategically
important businesses. Shareholgers have
benetited and Diploma has grown fromr
FTSE 185 1o FTSE 1M aver the period and the
Groug's pians remain ambitious. Designing
cur poiicy to recognise the increased
respons Dilites 1o attroct, retain and
incentivise management for the next phase
of growth was a top prority.

ESG i increasingly important to all our
stakeholders and we wish to introduce
targets into our varichble pay. Ensuring that
bonus medasures are 1igorous, specific,
stretching and go beyond the ‘day job'is
an essential principie of reward in Diploma.

Waork 's underway 1o develop De'lvenng
Yaiue Responsibly as part of the strategy
and we have set some non-financial KPis
and tergets {showr on page 59) tut nore
timne s needed to assure these megsures
befcre we can ntrodece them into varlabie
pav. Rocordingty, our proposed oo ity hos
fevibiity 1o introduce ESG metrics during
tris ooy peried (ot an appropriate po.nt)

Within the wider stakehoider context,

we considered how we reward our whole
workforce, as covered eariier. The senior
management team engoges frequently
with employees, either on a business-wide
basis or in the cortext of smailer focus
groups, to solcit feedback generaily on

a wide range of rmatters, including
remuneration. Feedback is passed to the
Commirnittee via the Executive tearm and is
taken irto account by the Committee when
setting Executive Directors’ Remuneration
Falicy. Addtionally, we paid attention to
how gowvernance is evolving and have mode
a numizer of enhancements in our new
polficy which are set out on page 121
including increasing minimum snarehoidng
requirernents {MSR} and post cessation
shareholding requirernents.

The tast step 'n the policy reviev, was 1o
review retevant market data t
{but not drive) the Committee’s
corsiderations. (data overview i s&t ot on
page 120). The Commrittee s aware of. and
shares, sharehoider concerns regardng the
risk of over refiance on benchrmarking, The
Committee'’s driver for any increased reward
is greater responsitility or comglexity in the
relevant role and to recognise greater
capakility ir the individual. In a growing
very successtul business such 0s ours, vee
are cognisant of retaining our key necoie

as they gain increasing market wartn f-o~r
their proven capcbiiities and track record

In this regard, rmarket daote does provide

a uzeful sense-check’.

From the multipie stens of the review,

the Committee concluded thee was

a compelling case 1o increase tetal
camipensation potentia’ for our Execstive
Directers. The Committze beleves 1hat
ncorporating the increase int tne PaF 1o
incentivise iong-term perfermance best
rmance delivery, strateg.c
execution ond sharehoider value, T- eretore
we Dropose 1C Norease the mos e m
award potent 3 o the FSF frommy 220° -7
300% of base soar, tor the CEC. o

200% 1o 2505 of bose sacry for
alongside the increases 13 oot
and post-cessatian sharene d




Shareholder consultation on proposed
changes

Our 2021 DFR was supported wih 3% of
vates in favour. During 2022, we consulted
extensively, on our poncy ond DRR 2022
molementotion and engaged veth 21 of our
iarges*® sharenolders, represenzing ground
65% of our register, as well as the key proxy
agencies. The quaity of the interactions
was excellent, and we apprecicte the
engagement and valuable feedback. There
was g range of views and preferences
erpressed, but we were pieased that the
0N was strongiy

supportive.

Remuneration for 2023 - implementation
Fixed pay:

As disclosed previously, Johnmy Thamson's
cosh G lowance inliew of pension
contioution will reduce to 4% of basc pav
frarn 1January 2023 to align with the
majerity of tne UK workforee.

The Committee considered Johnay
Tromson's salary as part of the review. The
Commttee is awore thot high inflation is
not a solid ratiorale for increasing exezutive
pay. The Comn“ttee considered the
increasad size and complexity of the Grour
idoukled 'nosize s shown intne d\uurow
ropage ]2 Y ond Johnny's value ¢
nigh-performing CEO, and :omlqdc—u trat
a bose poy increase was required e part
of increasing his total compensaticn
opportunity. Shareholders asked us 1o
revieve the increase ir the context of
interded wide- workforce poy increases, the
Macro-economic environment, inflationary
pressuies faced by our colleogues and the
overal quantum of CEO rewaord,
Having taken these views on board we
agreed gn increase to his pay of &%, wricn
reiains below the increase awarded 1o our
woer workforce at 7%, We befleve thic
prov des the right oolance within the
Comrpany and vein deliver o compettive

CEG pac<age.

Annual bonus:

Tee 2027 unnuat petormance Loty
folaw the same measures ag 2022
adiusted operating profit, 2
% free cosh Howe T’“'qets v pe Dases
orothe Board epproved sudget. Maxirmror
bonus for the CEO and CFO ’
anged ot 125% of hose soany

ALl Ra

PSP:

Ans'mg Torn the compeliing case 1o increase
1otol compensation for the CEO, the
Committee pians o implement the new
PSP maximua this vear tor the CEQ, sukiect
to shareholoer ;:p’uuo\ o the poncy.
Johnny Thomson wili receive a PSP cward
of 300% of base salary (PSP 2022}, Cnas
Davies will receive @ PSP award of 200%:

of base satary (PSP 2022} twhich will be
pro-rated based on him working eleven
months of the year).

& number of sharahoiders nave expressed
a preference for EPS over TSR {provided the
ROATCE unde-pir remrains}, and in our
consultotion we discussed increasing the
weighting of three-year CAGR odjusted £PS
growth 1o 75% of the total award (from
S0%). witn 25% (previously 0%} rermaining
or TSR resative to the FTSE 250 (excuding
financal services and investrment trusts).
A the mrajonty of shareholders were
suppottive, we intend 1o progress with this
change for PSP (2022). We will retain the
ROATCE underpin, recognising thisis

ort CCH‘; ‘mp tant o sharehaide

During consultaotion shareho'ders osked

Thot we ensure targets are oppropriately
stretching govers the grects 4Lq'm,r“ of
revead proposed The Commit

recognses that increased quortun of
renard should e cccompanied by
approprately fugh levess of per fermnonce
delivery. In setting targets, v seex tc ensure
trat the focus on organic g ewth is strong.
e qualty of coquisitions re~ains high and
trot the i r::‘"i nsk appetts s maintainec. In
response te feedback, we inteng to ingrease
EPS growth reauired f:ﬂ PRI L3 yout
under the 258 fromn ot St tme
aveand o 2522, Tre v o f‘*reshoi:' il
rerncin ot 5% This proe
of streter ambk 1o~ for D,L

considenng
SOECTT ot

e =
e prev rratest ComTiens. 198 Bonrd
AU mantain oversgnt =f “\C/—TC[, Ve el

- +m o e .
ST TLE T e o TRe o

anmeaity for

Non-Executive Directors and Committee
evaluation

Jonhn Nicholas retired oz Chair of the Bood
i Jonuory 2022 and was sutceeded by
Dawd Lowden. Dovid joined the Board as
Non-Executve Director ano Chair designate
on "9 October 2021 Nor-Executive Director
fees were reviewed using equivalent inputs
and increases are shown on page 133,

The Commiitee’s perforrmance was
assessed as part of the annual Board
evaluation. t am pleased to report thot
the Committee is regarded as operating
effectivery and that the Board tokes
reqssurance frO'T the quality of the
Committee's wark.

Conclusion
in closing | would once agai- like to thank
sharehalders for their engagernent over this
st year. We will mantain o ciose dialogue
as we seex 14 deliver a competitive,
motivating pay framework that s tighty
aligned ta shareholder experience whilst
mo‘mtcir*inq good governance standards.
Ftrust you find this repert useful and fook
forward to receiving your sLppert at the
AGM 518 January 2023

Andy Smith
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
21 Novemnber 2022
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REMUNERATION AT A GLANCE:
DIPLOMA’S APPROACH TO REMUNERATION

Set out below is an illustration of how
remuneration aligns to strategy and how it
cascades in our decentralised business model

Qur Purpose: Diploma'’s purpose is to consistently deliver value and reward our stakeholders by
making a positive difference to our colleagues, our customers and suppliers and our communities.

Diploma’s Strategy: build high-quality, scalable businesses for organic growth

Strategic pillar Short term incentive: Long term incentive: Rermuneration
Annual Bonus Performance Share Plan Principies

Operating profit: EPS (ROATCE underpin}: ﬁenjuneration cligmedd o "
o, business strategy and promoting

50 /0 75% the long-term success of the

P R Company.

Revenue: Relative TSR: Supporting creation of

O, 0, long-term shareholder value.
25 b 25 /0 Providing an appropriate balance

between remuneration elements
which are transparent, stretch'\ng

5. Free cash:
SCALING 25% and rigorously applied.
Providing a belance between
immediate and deferred
remuneration and encouraging
a high perfermance culture.

R Non-finandial KPis and targets in place, flexibility to
DELIVERING VALUE introduce DVR (ESG) metrics into remuneration included
RESPONSIBLY in the Policy

CASCADE OF REMUNERATION IN OUR DECENTRALISED BUSINESS:

- Remuneration Policy: updated Policy presented to sharebolders for voting at AGM in January 2023;
implernentation reviewed annucily.
EXECUTIVE - Emphasis on pay for performance and alignment with sharehelders on sustainable long-term
DIRECTORS performance: Group Annual Bonus and PSP measured on o balanced set of defined financial
measures linked 1o strategy.

- Set locally by referring to Group framework which aligns metrics, targets and quanturm for
different types of role. Group governance (including pay equity).
- Reviewed annually.
- Emphasis on pay for performance. Aligned variable pay, using a blend of Group and local
LEADERSHIP performance targets.
ROLES - Wider participation in Group PSP,

- Set locally, Group/Sector governance.
- Reviewed annually.

- Foir and cormpetitive in local market.
- Linked to colleague value proposition.




Business Performance 2022 Annual Report of Remuneration

Slratege mesoulior Perfarricr.:

Reward

Adjusted operating profit MCl Xim um bonus
payable

FOTILE H"Mi(]lju‘(%f: +2(?O/O

b act
rthor pemet-atirg
- Revenue

+1 SC%D

Free cash fiow

+1%

Adjusted EPS

9%

(7 AR
[S-venr LARD

] ROATCE:
fioy e s ad 175%
of the Qraup for nanle,
Relative TSR:
percentile rank

1%

(3 vecr performance]

Maximum vesting
on PSP

DVR _E;;-guéér;\ent index
Lrcellzrt progress ara aocelersten o,
s bisinesses ermbed DVR in 79 Yo

I T T ey
coammzicial sinslecies ang eperations 2021 79)

vof rrare corsistent and robust Scope 1& 2 emissions
) i {baseline year)
Targots st for tha SGret tirne,

Waste to landfill

60%

Flexibility to introduce
DVR metrics
in remuneration

10,615 tonnes CO, e included in Policy.

Sirat yean of measureniant’

2022 Broader Reward Priorities

Action

Ip;or't lower ﬁqla colleagues most
affected by the cost of living crisis

Wage increase for colleagues paidrlesé than £40k of 7.5%,
which is higher than the overall workforce increase.

Retain talent in the corﬁpetitive
talent market

Wage increase for the workforce of 7% (2021: 4%).
Review of variable pay structures and quantum.

Incentivise brilliant leaders on long-term success

N9 Deiplorna PLC Annual Report 2622

PSP participation increased to ca. 50 participants (2021: ca. 35
participants, 2020: ca. 15 participants).

To keep pace with the growing Group variable pay structures
and quantum reviewed, high pay for high performance.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

2022 Remuneration Policy Review — process
Changes to Remunerat_ipn VPoIicy and its implepwentotion

TEC wEl U Lotk Tirsat Lt Reera o oan, ke Polic wr

~ v

~ Policy ke

Wbl rtEeae s

1. Excellent performance and increased scale and complexity 2. Wider stakeholder context
of the Group: moved from FTSE ca. 185 to FTSE ca. 111 considered during Policy review:
Adjusted earnings per share , . ‘ - Ambitious growth plans. o
R L - - Attracting, retaining and incentivising
12 13 14 15 6 17 18 ®

management.

- Increased market worth of
managermnent given performance
track record.

- Workforce remuneration experience
and views.

- Focus on supporting wider workforce
during macro environment affecting
workforce-inflation, energy.

: : ; E = - Increasing importance of ESG
FY12-18 EPS ! performance.
; E o ; - Broader indicators of culture e.g.
: . T f *° | colleague engagement (Engagement
: L ‘ : ! index 79%).

- Market developrnents in governance
The Group has doubled whilst improving operating margin

«
o
=

practices, ensuring our governance
aligns with needs of stakeholders.

3. Market insight:
used to 'sense check”

FY19 : FY22 H .
2523\./7&:_:16 a Drf;eﬁ’:;'e a} Infermation on UK pay levels for

companies of similar size FTSE 150-100
{Diploma: FTSE 111, 30 September 2022).
b) There are few direct peers for Diploma.
Hence we use a range of companies
in similar markets or with similar
value-add business models to provide
a comparison (RS Group ple, Bunzl ple,
Inchcape plc, Spirax-Sarco Engineering
ple, Rentokil Initial ple, Howden Joinery
Group Plc, Spectris ple, Halma ple, DS
Smith plc, Travis Perkins ple, Johnson
Matthey plc). Sorme within this list
are larger than Diplerma but provide
useful insight.
c) Variable pay targets for FTSE 250.

Revenue growth
FY19-22

% Cortrols Seals  * Life Sciences

FY9
Adjusted Operating Profit £97.2m
(operating margin 17.8%}

4. Shareholder consultation on proposed chcngéé_:

- Extensive, direct shareholder consultation with ca. 65% of the register.
- Consultation with key proxy voting agencies.
- Conversations with sharehoiders shaped policy proposals including considerations of quantum and stretch in performance targets.




2022 Remuneration Policy proposals and rationale

Pension aligament with wds

Improving the competi

Cinzctors’ comis
reflecting qroairy bus

o feadarship

o' Executive
crianity,
ross and criticality

Livieress

Skarehelder aigmment

by o

Ve

Anbaticnr

for CLD redus

N cnange 1o rmiraal banus Palicy mcesdinnm

= increase 1o PSE rosasirrure frons 2507

2007 1z 250%

of walary 1o 300% of salory “o

nario ot excertioral

welli algr

r CEC and frorn

Faatan

el Tt S0

007

s walary o ]

[

wineire (MLR) to alig-

T 2508

Fxrersior of post ermiploymant sharcha <
MER 1z ke held for two vears af tler Ltermiration date.

It ction o B0

Plesatzility toincluds ESG metrics dler ey

~exl policy periog.

Proposed implementation of policy in FY23

Fixed
remuneration

Annual
bonus

Long-term
incentives

Shareholding
guideline

Post-cessation
guideline

Johnny Thomson
(CEQ)

Base pay: £754,300
Benefits {und
Persion: 141,085
equivalent to 4%
of base vay om
1.an 23)

Max: 125% base nay
Target: &2 5% base
Uy

Masx: 3009 base pay
PSk (2022): 200%.
OGS [Ty
Parformance pericd:
thraee years

Holding period: five
vears froms grant

Chris Davies'
{CFO)

Base pay: £250,030
Benefits fund
Fersicr: £13,000
{equivalent to 4%
of bose pay)

Change from
2021

CEObase pay &%
incroase;

CEO pension reduced;
Mew CFO appointed

Max: 125% base pay
Target: &7.57% base

oy

No change

Max: 200% base pay
PSF {20227 200%
base pay
Performaonce perice:
three years

Halding period: five
years from grant

Polcy maximurm
increas=d for CLO &
CFO

PSP award increcsec
for CEQ

New CFO oppointed

Holding requirernent:
300% base pay

Holding reguirement:
504 of MER for 2
years sTtor the
termination: date

HOIGing requirernent:
250% base pay

Hold'ng requiremenrt;
50% of the MSR “ar

7 years ofter the
termination oote

Shareholding
guideline increasad in
line with new PSP
MK

Ircreased post
cessotion quideline
from 12 months te
2 years

T e e U2 Perauraer ot Ln o et it tanle aboae o 2T naaised Wer reniercentad gl B Seed oo ceariazh o
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration Policy

Tomm e = - 4 -
Executive Directors
Component Purpase and link to strategy Qperation Maximum cppoertunity Performance metrics

- Rty 3 TETE S T Ty

e

Base salary Tsomiteact an

Io=et ano ar

3 el

e

Pensions

Be n—;ﬁts"

+ - .




Component Purpese and link to strategy Maximum cpportunity Performuance metrics

[

Annual o=

Performance LT T s yoTo
Bonus Plan P

3oday 216einiig

Performance R
Share Plan L
(PSP) S m T
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REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

Chair and Non-Executive Directors

Component Purpose and link to strotegy i Maximum opportunity Perfermance metrics

mance measures and targets for Annual Bonus and PSP

N s Frow

Selection of perfor

lHustration of application of Policy

Johnny Thomson Chris Davies




Considergtion ef shareholder view
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MIBIAIIA

Differences in remuneration policy for other employees
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REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

Compensction 4 2
povaoble upon
Controct Unexpired MNetice early
date teom perod terminction
- . E :
B z il -
T et

appointments

ce Tt

Remuneration for new
- . o




Employee and post-employment shareholding requirements

0

MBIAIIA

Committee discretion L

X wn
+ - +
i
EEPHERES s S = EeT E-;
I - . S e e o
- o
c S R o
IaTLE Tt e =t : T TLZUT L e »
s : (i)
v e ILD e o
c -]
. . +

et sren e 2o Chair and Non-Executive Directors

Recruitment and term
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Policy in respect of external board cppointments for e s - . S

Executive Directors
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REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

Provision 40 table

Clarity

Simplicity

S s

f

Example: . oocnne e e et 7 s
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

Executive Directors (audited)
Total remuneration in 2022 and 2021
Joanmy Thomsor Borbara Ginbes
2022 2527 2022 200 2022
__ £000 1006 £060 £000 .. 000 .
o o o m 365 R 1,076
s A L 2 s ) 19 o 44 -
~ L n ) no 15 e 86
807 200 399 U 1,206 2
ITnTa I B o 889 ‘ 45 L5 1,345 s
an o 75 == a7 K.
el 1725 o 340 2,065 oF
=T B -7 : coTT T
o o 282 Gl 110 -2 -
R Lo - LTI 2,062 TETE 467 - 2,529 o
Total variable 2,951 £ 923 2Lt 3,874 Lo
Single total figure 3,758 Sy 1,322 oA 5,080 -
Departure of Barbara Gibbes and appointment of Chris Davies {audited)
Sonmole oIl sAoaen DILD mon s Dt stepned ores frav re e 2o Gronn DR oz et o oo oLt vne slLl
Executive Directors’ base salary (unaudited) 7

e e e T R

Salary from
1October
2022
£000

[LSTEET = T S LR SR T

754

450

MIIANBAD
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Pension (gudited)

2022 2021

Contribution Pension Cantnbuton Fens.or
rate % of paid as cash rote % ot oig oo cask
base salary £000 bose saiory £030
10 71 i Sis

4 15 < 1<

Annual performance bonus {audited)
Bonus pay out for year ended 30 September 2022

st rar ~
I3 e el PRSI

Bonus awarded to each of the Executive Directors for year ended 30 September 2022

202 cl bonus - as o peroentage of 2027 base salary 2022 bonus

) i Finoncial ) o
_ o B ) B 1007 Moo On-targe* MaximuT objectives Total bonus. . £000
T ' . i R 125% 125% 889
B - N R 125% 125% 456

i e ® N .- - st

Bonus awards for year ended 30 September 2023




Long-term incentive awards {oudited)

UL L Tom e S L A S A S
Performance conditions
! L T R ST H RN TR LN o ST - - B [

“o of awards

voday a1bainiig

Asjusted EPS growin {over three years) votting
< CDED PTG e T T T -
ENCARNAR S A
<
o]

% of cwards

westing

(@)
o
=
-
o
=
o
+
[+]
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o
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2
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3
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

EPSat
30 Sep CAGR Yested
Base £95 2022 ir EPS award
223t 109.4 e
EL v LT <o Lz ‘ g Tl LEE T
Trolomhrities e OB CDT AAET TR T D reetl e Do i

TSR growth against FTSE 250 (excluding financial services and Investment Trusts)

T5R at
30 Sep
- . Med-ar, Joper gusttile Moximum eward
20.0% p.o. Coa et oo

Vested cword

i} e the el sl St Jememm T T R
Shate price Share Shave
at dote price ot Propertion Shares Performance appreciation
of grant 3C Sep 2022 of award vested elerient elerent-
pence pece vesting number £000 £008
100% 85,481 S el

Totai

£000

[ st 100% 19,374 RE 400
end equivalent payments (audited)
It BN PO I S SN TN BN P b _

Outstanding share-based performa




Diploma PLC 2011 ond 2020 Performance Share Plan (audited)

Shares Shares

Sharer over which over which

fare va ve of over whuch awards awards

Morket  the cworg ot End of cwargs nela granted Vested Lapsed held at

oce o1 Acte 2ai ot gront pe-formance at " et during during the during the 30 Sep
of swmard L2035 DENOC VETUng cote 202 the year period period 2022

Johnny Thomson

O

Lo e . = T - 85,481 - - p
o luz L7 nLr g - - - 74,804 <
e . ...Ssp007 - - 57007 B
Barbara Gibbes!
Toe TEs R T - 19,374 - -
. - e sz - - (8,601) 17,201
Sat e N 20,485 - (13,656) 6,829

uoday 316ainayg

Chair and Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration (gudited)

T L R LSRR S O Y B

Tota fees

2022 2021
£000 £0UC

[ R 207 -
LIttt 48 =
e e 67 o
TRy 77
D it s 55
55 -
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Executive Directors’ interests {qudited)
In options over shares

T N L sk Sl ol

Vesteo Options
Options gs ot Exercised durning the unexercised as Exercise Earliest ncrma,
10ct 201 ear yeor ot 30 Sep 2022 price* exarcine aate Expiry 2ote
[ HL 0] | - - £1 ‘ -

85,481 £1
19,374 £1

[
Directors’ interests in ordinary shares
As at 30 Sep 2022 Ay ot 30 Ser FO21
Options with
Ordinary  Options vested performance Cramery Gt A vette
_shares  but unexercised measures shoet  butungxerc

T 102,330 85,481 131,811 T
Sl higes 5,082 19,374 24,030 <

Chair and Non-Executive Directors’ interests in ordinary sha

-

res (audited)

B T o T TN P

IR N :

- 7 N - o = VOO ITTIT DL oz =

Imterest i ordingry chores
RS o As ot 30 Sep'zozz A gt I
Lo o ’ 2’500
BRI 9,045 -
P 7,545
e e 5,045 =
T 2,045 R

540 -




Remuneration in context
Chief Executive pay rotio (unaudited)

=TTl ‘ - ERR A4
o Lo e . PN
- - . T
Tty et L R To-mLTE I R T TTeT T sroingty eyt nTTe s
powLT I ar e e ¢ PR LT T T T T s ST et
4 - o A= - . P .
25th percentie Median 5 percentie
Year Metroa poy ratio poy ratio pay rotio
BERIEa R S
Lo - - - ~ R
I o
L &b A

Rane of bose pay
Bosesaary  to CEC base poy

Hoday 216ayoayg

REER I Nl

Aligning pay with performance (unaudited)
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Growth in the value of a hypothetical £100 holding over ten years

Q0

750
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Chief Executive Officer remuneration compared with annual growth in TSR (unaudited)

CEQ single
figere of toral
remunErCton

Arnug bonus
oganst
manimum

Artuglisnare
Sward sesting
aganst
maximum

vear Narre ~ 720003 opportunity _oRpoItunity
2022 Johnny Thomson 3,758 100% 100%

7 g .

5 e oc
N o [ -0

2022 2027 Chomge

£m irm Lm
T ; 177.5 e B
R R T R R 56.2 o= :

Percentage change in remuneration of Directors and employees (unaudited)

Base sawary/fee chonge (%) Fennor znange e, Toxotae tenettc chorge (e Bonur cngngs 150
2022 2020 2022 20 2022 piopyl 232¢ 2022 202" 2528
vs 2021 ve 2019 vs 2021 ve 2020 vs 2021 ve 2020 ve 2079 vs 2021 v 2024 ve 2000
Executive Directors
. Mo ~ . Na .
R Co o +3 crange - -18 -0 +2 e <hange +3 - s
Ne ~E _ ..
+7 “hange - +7 change M- +2 - P +7 -l I
_ Ne
ool n/a chanae M
Ne _
ot LTt -69 change -
TN Mo
Lol T e +3 chotiae nage
Lol T - +5 - -7
e
- e S +3 Trznge
T T +185 -
Employees of the
Parent Company n/a T Sz n/a g n/a E n/a = =
. R HNo fel }
Senior monagement team +7.5 - - +7.5 - change  “nonze o +22 - -




Executives and senior management below the Board (unaudited)

e t e e
B LF N San
. o - B toee o .
Shares over
Srate which
Foce valas of ower whick awards
Market price: the awaid ot tnd ot awaras helz granted Vested Lapsed
atcote of cote of grant  performance ar 1 Octobes during the during the during the

aword £000 period 20 year year

year

Shares
over which

awards held
at 30 Sep
2022

L = 29,5467

AL - _

4,460

9,612

39,860

102,258 -

GOVERNANCE
Remuneration Committee
’ T R A

e e tme e

The Remuneration Committee Repo
Tre s Fer s meen et oo mrntva Dot Dinraet 0 om0t me g st e er
Remuneration principles and structure
I TR LI L B R S BT HI U S Lf T (SRR S SRR SRS
SRt DR '

; - I N I i IRe e I Toie il S i DRI R .
Key duties and focus in 2022
IR PRI LT AL Sy s croomd o el JF e e et ine ST e S v " d R

- - = b . - = - - N F- - -
. " R D 1y 1 e
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Services from external advisors (unaudited)

2 e e L ~ ATV o o e . T e B R

Othe secvices
prov.oed 16 the

Appointec oy Services provided to the Commuttee Cempan Fees [T
PP P Pany

R SR L= P B

Shareholder voting at previous Annual G

= M

eneral Meeting (unaudited)

LT ave D Ty ST IeTUiTE Ot

T, TE




DIRECTORS' REPORT

. - - o

Shareholders '

Incorporation and principal activity .
B T S T O IR S e R A o
. <
- ]
L
=,
e o
£

Contracts of significance and change of control
.- I O e L TR

Annual General Meeting Restrictions on transfer of shares

ywoday a1barong

- e e - B e - P
L = S ; ooz . ST T
- S
cE ol
= P .

Substantiol shareholdings
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DIRECTORS REPORT
CONTINUED

Disclosures required under Listing Rule 9.8.4C
- . = T E 4l

4

Directors’ assessment of going concern

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements

Sreltote e esln

: ~dthe fing
Non-financial information statement STt T IOt e it
e

Financial
Results and dividends

Independent Auditors
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

2022 2507
WNete £m imt

Revenue ) o G 1,012.8 e

Littomanes S - (638.3) R

Gross prbﬁt 7 o I 3745 LA
Tortellit et {25.9) oE
N A R A {204.3) =

Operating profit . 144.3 T
Tlentin aegastil Tt : {14.8) o

Profit before tax 128.5 e
Tow myr ar e - {34.1) P

Profit for the year 95.4 n-

At ket
woZienot ves Jormur, 94.7 SL A

Pl rteentn ~ o S Z. 0.7 T
95.4 e

Corcent oo : 76.p
ooren=wn oy - 75.9p

MHeate £fm Lo

BRI E St A N R : 46.9

Adjusted operating profit o ' T T e
T e R PR : {11.6) -

Adju;ted proﬁt- before tax 179.6 B

Adjusted earnings per share - 107.5p e




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3C SEPTEMBER 2022

2022 Klohg!
Nete £m £
Profit for the year o o o 95.4
Items that will not be reclassified to the Consolidated Income Statement - h -
TP L I S T T e - 10.6
R L T T St LT e < (2.8)
o Ty Ty ST - e T 77 -
lterns that may be reclossified to the Consolidated Income Statement
i " v F S 76.8 -
- v = - 4.5 =
=1 - - o - e o c {0.4) ’
{1.1)
T 798 Bl
87.6
o o ~183.0
T o 182.2 =
- 0.8 2
o - i B 183.0
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
Snare Share Transigtion Hedging Retained Shareholders’ W.naaty Totat
Lapatai prermere reserve TeLErvE [ laalials}d equity Atesents equity
Pete Lo j2aal £m £rr im £m frr £m
At 1 October 2020 - e e £ S 52720 5307
B T - - o ok 60.8 o &60.5
S * < = 1.8 - 1.8
’ : 1.0 - 1.0
IR {0.5} {0.5)
Lrmo e - - - 0.9
M - -
asac - - - < {0.9) {0.9
Nt < - - - - - 0.7
R . - - o {52.9) (53.2)
At 30 September 2021 s T . K sl 536.3 <7 541.0
Tora Do St i L BN 182.2 _E 183.0
e L A ST z Do 2.8 2.8
3.t - - 0.4 0.4
L {2.8) (2.8)
~ - - oF 2.5
- . - - {1.3)
- (1.9) (1.9)
1.2 - 1.2
- - - {C.3)
e - ol (56.2) (56.4)
At 30 September 2022 63 1886 888 32 37531  662.0 6.2  668.2

MAIAIBAQ

3oday 1Bayniyg
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT AT 30 SEFTEMESE (]

2022 07
Note £m fre

Non-current assets

< 372.3 2667
£ orsete 0 455.0 344 6
) 4.1 4
Ot I 49.6 354
? 62.4 a4 G
4 6.4
Defened 1en greety 3 0.2 04
950.0 5857

Frope o oL

_eases . oht o of e mogels

1
Retrervien? bene’ @ oosete 4

Current assets

14 217.4 135 8
=] 169.9 s

15 - T3

s 4.7 248
429.0 2937

Brorgonng 3 (30.5)
- et et {189.5)
Coomert tos ah g & (11.8)
e har Hee 15 {19.0)
cease hotites 2 (12.7) S

(263.5) 7L 4
Net current assets 165.5 i

Jay

Total assets less current liabilities 71‘,1_15.5
Naon-current lighilities

Feteere e pre’ rnion o P2 -
SIS L {340.1)
leose L . 14 {56.4)
G At s {12.4)
Leederren o bt = E (38.4)
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Sk coe T 6.3 o2
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

2022 vy
tiote £ £rm

144.3 4T
O R LR AN R LI SR SO SIS I 456.9 s
B RS LR Tt 18.1 SRS
s (28.7) e

e

3

Cash flow froméperotlngﬁgg&lt;e57 o 180.6 B
VOUTET L Ll e T e {15.0) R
(40.6) e
125.0 e

MBIAIBAD

Net cash from operating activities

Cash fiow from investing activities

Lo e ST LT AT LOnL e o (173.0) L1t 4
I T = {7.1) Y
T LRGSO T T 13.7 v

Lt - (14.3) 45
(1.1}
L e T N e MMt Re [Pt 9.9 <=

{171.9} Aed

Net cash used in investing octivities

Cash flow from financing activities
‘ LT TAT T T P e -

R SR B M=t S (56.2) __ -

yoday vi6a3payg

- ST e B (0.2) T
: e e _ .
. : (0.3) -

AR R T - -
LT I SR LT LT LTl T et T T T [T (2'8)

T E e N ET RN 154.8 s
RN RN {20.0) T
PR S MR Ak el TR R N N (10.9) o _:."'

Net cash from financing activities N 64.4 T

Net increase/{decrease} in cash and cash equiﬁalé}xts 17.5 10
- P IR ) RIS B i "“(;. R 24.8 . k' 5_‘
[ NP TOETTUITIV it egui et L o ) (06) o

Cash and cash équivclen‘ts at end of year i 4.7 b
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Free cash flow o 120.4 Wz
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

1. General information

= - e e

2. Busi

-

ness S

ector analysis

e




Lfe Sciences

Searc

2o

2022 e 2022
£m irm £m im
SN 1780 w. 4 294.4 nr
S 10.6 37.0
Revenue 188.6 sl 334 i
- ' 39.7 2% 57.0 irr 0 104.0 (18.2) < 182.5
T UEE LY. 1.3 5.6 1.8 - 8.7
Adjll‘.TFd operating profit 41.0 il 62.6 .t 105.8 I (18.2} N .2
e 15 Zn 0 {16.6) < {30.5) 0 (1.3} (46.9) <2
Operating profit 425 54 46,0 iE 75.3 27 (19.5) oo | 1443 o
Treeatee A e 74.0 1T 2075 P M5 i - 4930 -
SRt 106.2 £ 125.2 ST 1409 - 3723 -l
'y S e e e 74.9 20 100.2 o 2799 LT - 455.0
o - 255.1 Tt 4329 445 632.3 ST - 11,3203
- ‘ - 0.2 s 0.2 z
s :‘ =3 41.7 L 41.7 2o
R =z 1.8 1.8
Rt s 6.4 6.4
LIt et 8.6 . 8.6 o
Total assets 2551 G s 4329 a5 6323 i 4 587 = | T1,379.0 =
s s (41.7) Ll (103.3) iz (92.6) o - (237.6) -
. = - (38.4) o (38.4) o
Toat i (31.4) (31.4) :
(32.8) e (32.8) i
(370.6) .- (370.6) . -
Total liabilities (41.7) “ T 103.3) 2 (92.8) S (473.2) - (710.8) - -
Net assets 2134 - 3294 s 8397 477 (414.5) 6682 L
wfe Lziences Seals Contrals Corpourate Grooax
o 2022 20N -2022_ "-____502‘ T 2022- i 2-32‘. 2022 20N ) 72022777 h 2000
- £m £ £mn £ £m £ £m i £im i~
- i 8.0 ;T 3.7 . 27 1 09 i 15.3
- 2.9 T 3.5 g 4.6 0.2 : 1.2 3
Revenue -r-e-c_oé-ﬁion S o o B -
176.4 e 315.6 492.8 o7 - . 984.8
12.2 15.8 . - - 28.0 -
- 188.6 << 3314 7 4928 e L 1,012.8 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

3. Gecgraphic segment analysis by origin

40 usted operating Trading copital
Revanue . profiy Nor current assets employed Capital expenaiture
2022 2021 2022 Z0 2022 2an 2022 200 2022 2021
fm im £m Lrry £m £m £m £ £m im

209.7 I 193.6 55 2022 SICOE W1 oF
186.7 i 29.3 T 169.1 E i 179.8 L E 1.7 .
561.0 o 129.5 o 519.2 e T 8142 PR 8.9

75.4 oz 1.4 e 57.1 P 62.3 e 1.3 Cx
1,012.8 T S 939.0 “£77  1,058.5 Tz 15.3 S

4. Group employee costs
Average number of employees

Number of employees - average - o ' 2,614 T

Number of employees ~ year end 2,909 atE

Group employee costs, including key management

2022 20
£m £
154.8 e

13.3 ol

2.8 s
177.5 e

2022 203
£m £

5.0 £l

Soree e 0.2 .
2.4 -

. = =L TEITERN T VLT TILTCE T DD TR LIl [
T e 77T . -

2022 292
£m e

- 0.5 Tl
Set e Toe el 2.6 o=
31 Ts
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5. Financial expense, net
2022 2021

Interésti(ié;;ﬁ:éh;éi/ﬁincome'und simiiar cho@és N

b0 LT IR DR (1.0) -

(o]
~ — - " i=g = = = 1 = - <
o
e L _ oo ]
' ' =,
Tel' <1 - o tes e - VB g
Net interest expense and similnr charges :
DI e D 3o by e o
Financial expense, net o
- e R R A * N N R -~
: o - Lo e = 2
IR T e TR e A - S “ w
-
-
6. Tax expense =
2022 2021 o
£fm £m @a,
14
Current tax =
)
R e TR e L o S e LY I B b A S AR AL SRR I TR Sk Ul R A P AR o
‘ S i 2
L St tn 10.0 5 -+
s B 30.8 o
40.8 S
-7 cn e T e el r_ S
T N R (0.2) Zi
T Iz 01 L
Total current tax 40.7 :

Deferred tax
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3

I o

=

28

" a
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S

Factors affecting the tax charge for the year 5
T T e B T L P A S-S L I T m
o mere et AT At - ) 3

-~ R . T [ = - -+
"

2022 20
£m £rm

Proﬁfc_ before_';c_:_n__x_ ) _129.5 B
B L R B e e I U TR S 24.6 s

TTTet T gt oL ol 6.7 <7
(0.1) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

2022 202 2022 2021
pence per share

15.0
o 4 :"-)‘F',"’ Sy . o 30.1
45.1

I PR LTt} {LRL e} ST IS S ol S IV SRSt S [ RS S R P ST . ERR S ez
Adjusted earnings per share
oozt BRR st Tadohme o morg L0 o UTER 02T BE T
2022 Flerdl 2022 201
pence pershare  penceperthore  fm L

Profit before tax 1295 i
- e o= (34.1) it

P Rl
4

Set. e (0.7) o

Earnings for the year attributable to sharehelders of the Company 76.1 et 94.7 ez

LI It I T CTIE T 3T TTET STt T L T LL s LT o ITon RERSORRDRI Lot

e o S 34 39.2

Adjusted earnings o 107.5 s 1339

9. Goodwill

Li*e Sciences Sech Camtros Total
£ o fr £m

Lz [ It 15%9.0

Ca = - n7é

mber 2022 L ol s 372.3

At 30 Septe:




Total
acquisition Other
Custormer Supoher intangible intengible
relztionships relgtionsnips ossets assets
£ Lm £m Em
Cost
RIS S Lk - 183.2 7.6
Tt - - 1.4
e - lndo 4 - L4 306.8 0.2
- . . (3.6) (0.9)
mooon - e T (6.9) {C.4)
o 24 h {16.8}) (0.3)
a LA z = B 4827 7.6
- - 1.0
z - oo 99.9 0.8
- (1.1}
R I e = 69.9 1.0
At 30 September 2022 547.9 30.9 53.7 632.5 .3
Amortisation o T
-l cae 4 <z .- 96.0 4.6
- . - B 18.7 -
Dot ) o h 14.4 0.7
- T o (3.6) (0.7}
LE = (5.4) (0.1}
= o o N - (2.3) {0.3)
LRI e ] a ol S A 4.2
Lo I T 4.0 -
T - SO B < 384 0.8
_ - (CG.4)
N » 17.3 0.6
At 30 September 2022 o ] 140.1 246 128 1775 5.2
Net book value S S - o
At 30 September 2022 407.8 6.3 40.9 455.0 4.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Freehoid Lezasebhont Piant and Hosoita- feid

properties prope-ties equipment sauiprient Total
im £ £ L £m
Cost

LU0 v 00 I8 .4 o 43.3
- s Y 4.9
>3 < 4 21.8
z TR 7 2 (7.6)
Pl & {10.6)
- - {2.4)
i e L85 s 69.4
- : T B 14.3
. £ [ 5 Z " &.7
- - 4 {5.0)
Tx EEIEEES A gz A o - 12.3
At 30 September 2022 3.6 13.2 6.2 19.7 97.7
Deprecidfion 7 T o o U
S i £z Tz o5 -z 35.4
] - 5 9.2
£ . D {5.5)
B (4.5)
v . (0.6)
Zs a7 = 34.0
o cl s 10.4
o ZT - (3.7}
o JE T LETTET . B £z = 7.4
At 30 September 2022 11 5.2 32.7 21 481

Net book value ' S
At 30 September 2022 2.5 8.0 28.5 10.6 49.6
At 3T Serterrno 2007 G 35 T A R




12. Leases - right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Right-of-use assets

Lone & Puart & Motar 1T & a-hee
Lol dings SIAzInEry venCles equipTent Total
£ L fr £ £mn

Cost

I B RS ot P LE 38.9

Lootoors LA T s . 269
Dol L L - T {2.6)
e o - - : (0.9}
T - o - {0.7)

oz 47 L 61.6

-z Lz A oA 25.4

Tholoz o - G - (2.0)
R T T T “ - - 4.9
At 30 September 2022 ' 811 0.8 8.3 1.7 91.9
Dépreciation . I o '
St iTtooe [0S n o i R 7.3
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Evlranoe GouriTenas H - - 1.4
At 30 September 2022 B 253 0.3 3.0 0% 295
Net book value

At 30 September 2022 55.8 0.5 5.3 0.8 62.4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

13. Deferred tax

P e e ne s e 2022 021
- N - - - B - f.rni im
" i o 21.9) o
6.6 -
e -z = {17.6) £
y teer ot (3.9) S
{1.4) L
- (38.2) e
£y TTIE e i ae Ta R TETT I 2T ITel Onag A T LR
. _ ‘_~_s_sstrs . Lnf:bdmes B L Net o
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
£m £m £m £m £m im
0.1 Ta (5.8) o (5.7) 5

- (42.0) e e (42.0)
- - (1.0) - {1.0}
33 s (0.1} 3.0
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2022 2527
fm I

. 43 Lo
e 70.1 EE
12.6 5

- 18.0 £
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1.z 4.5 oA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

17. Cash and cash equivalents

UK uss Ccs Euro Other Total UK uss s Eure
fm £m £mn £m o £m £m irm £ g im
15.2 7.1 2.3 7.8 6.4 38.8 e _E e e

- oa 18 - w029 T .
152 72 41 78 74 47 £i R R

18, Financial instruments

e Tro.s 1T

a) Credit risk

e B e LTl
e
T s

Zarving amaont

2022
£m

151.7 ez
9.8 o
41.7 :

2032 -

Impairment of financial assets
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

10.3 :
2.6

I~

d} interest rate risk

TGOk e ANE Tisk my ¢ Zroup st

TR ertEr
TELNDL L

S e

e} Fair values

- o

Trade and other receivables/payables

Borrowings
Other ligbilities

management ris




2022
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19.0
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£
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

20. Minority interests

s

T ey

ST DE DT LIl edr

At 30 September 2022

T . s [ [ b - ey
21, Acquisitions ond disposals of businesses
Acquisition of R&G Fluid Power Group Limited

IR oL e ji Sl S i R RO T ’:\,»::u Rl SR

Acquisition of Accuscience
T - i = _ _

Cther acquisitions




Accuscience

Others

4%

e

Fasr votue

Book va ue

Farr

Fair value

£m

- 98.2

{18.5)
6.7
26.1
22.3

(29.7)

105.1
80.6
(2.5)

178.3
(6.1)

172.2
1.0

183.2

Acquisitions revenue and sted operating profi
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

CONTINUED

22. Reconciliation of operating profit to cash flow from operating activities

2022 2022 262 2021
R . £m £m im i
Operating profit - ' 1443 o hez
Araus o rearen R R Rl o - 446.9
Adjusted operating p;ro'ﬁt 191.2
239 J
e 2.8 z
e . Trlerect (0.6) s
{1.6) SR
(6.5) &z
e e TimnDst e o0 01 o
Non-cash items and other - o h N 181 - :
Operating cash flow before changes in working capital o T 2093 o
AT RS T T eI R {35.6) s
- - "z {10.6) -
mcnale S| CUE 17.5 -
Increase in working capital {28.7) -~
Cash fiow from operating activities 180.6 ar
23. (Net debt)/cash funds
Thg ey e e e e g e e S . -
R T - B ) Exchonge  Other mon-cosh
1Oct 2021 Zast fiow Mmoverente rsveTents 30 Sep 2022
o o e i e £m £m £m
- 4k i e 417
- B K = e 7 (370.4)
4 i (328.9)
Exzhange  Other nor-cash
T Oct 2020 Zash fow movermnents misverments A6 Sep 7821
e I I fre km i £ gl
s ITiT ol M Ll E ’ . LLE
Cash funds/(net debt] 'rf e : B




24, Retirement benefit asset and obligations

2022 2821
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Pension scheme net (assét_} / deficit
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£m a
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

a) Pension surplus / {deficit} included in the Consalidated Statement of Financial Position

2022 200
£m im
1 A et B B
20.7 o
39 £
73 U
- S ne A
Frescry cile 5 res e b ties {25.5} <07
Pension scheme net asset / (deficit} i o 6.4 T
rteoLroLoretrn o
2022 2021
sm ~ £m
(0.8) o
0.8 o
2022 201
£m £
(68 £
15.4 .
0.3 L
- : : ! (0.7) -
Actuarial -é-c-:in credited in the Consolidated Statement of é‘;};\prehensive Incorme o 8.5 B
“ o LTt tLnn rreds oo orcen e Do mpren Timteer et oo D oas e s - - -
d} Analysis of movement in the pension (asset) / deficit
2022 2021
£m £
Lo e 2.7 o
oo - (0.6) -
B R T T {8.5) K
{Asset) / deficit as at 30 September (6.4) .
e) Analysis of movements in the present value of the Scheme liabilities )
=
R 41.0 Lk
: Baaae TmETte nnoval 0.7
R - 0.8 -
T SR R L SN T (15.7) s
e (1.3) -
At 30 September e 255 55




) Analysis of movernents in the present vatue ot the Scheme assets
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o]

At 30 September 31.9
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

Effect of the Scheme on the Group's future cash flows

s Tt v c@n e T a4 e TRl e D

The Kubo Pension Scheme (the Kubo Scheme)

g S et Seui e el

2022 202
£m ire
I Tt S S ' . - {0.5) L
Amount charged to opercriihg”b’rroﬁt in the Consolidated Income Statement o (0;55- T
c} Analysis of movement in the pension deficit
2022 207
£m £
T D - 2.2 S
SN st Temmn s 0.5 3
- {0.5) :
= R T et T e (2.1 -
IR gl E N e A {0.1)
At 30 September - K
d) Amounts recegnised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
R S - C ST CoTT T T 2022 2021
£m irm
w3 =
4.2 -
(0.4) -
(0.4) -
21 e
2022 200
o
1.0% Lo
. L 2.3% EPRE
TrermIt DRI TTE 1.0% T
e BVG2020 R
Sensitivities
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Effect of the Kubo Scheme on the Group’s future cash flows

£
TS IR e S O Sat e Dk I R I PRk P o STl Lol T SR L S D B
25. Auditors’ remuneration
2022 o0
_ N 11/ S i
e s il Lo Be MLl oLt 11 N
] 0.4 -
BT 1.5 z

4 ST G s B ML AT T SR
26. Exchange rates
T T 1S e R I AR P R A L

Average Ciosing

2022 2021 2022 202

1.27 E oz S

1.63 R 1.53 g
. 1.18 o 114 -
G e 1.20 1.10 e
e R TS 1.79 CE 1.74 -

n

27. Ahlternative performance measures

27.1 Adjusted operating profit and adjust
B O L AT Il AP (o S Th e LTI

2022 0n
£

T - o 1,028 - o<
- 144.3 e
moowernme om0 46.9 I

o - B LT I E DI

B A S

ééj;lisgﬂ_ogerratiﬁg rofit B o ) T A - 19_132 e

Adjusted operating margin P 18.9% B

L B N PP

27.2 Adjusted profit before tax
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

2022 2021 2022 a1
pence pershare  pence per shate Em fm
Profit before tax B - B 1295
(34.1)
T - ] _ - (8.7)
E:lirinlngs for the yeor attributable to shareholders of 'theE'ompony N 761 o 947
LTOL L TRDT AL ITEG O3 STReT LNGNI00 D03 S0e D107 TG @l T 2700 D e
Siet 3.4 - 59.2
Adjuste&iedrnings o o T - 1075 133.9

27.4 Free cash flow and free cash flow conversion

= T e Ho T i

2022 20
Mote £m s
' 175 e
56.2 s
B 0.2 .
0.3
) 177.6 ZEY L
. 6.5 sl
. (13.7)
Z 71 =
: 2ozt TIT et ot oTeelocon et o7 (131.3) S
mte_coﬁf;ﬂow B ) o o - U 120.; o
Adjusted earnings 133.9 e
Free cash Alow conversion 0% R




27.5 Trading capital empioyed and ROAT!

s

CE

.

Net assets

Reported trading capital employed

o -

2022

38.2 N
(6.4) 2z
29.6 =

328.9
1,058.5
99.6

E o e B L T A oot TETEr AT WO e R

Adjusted trading capital empioyed 1,158.1
- DA I LL R SN 191.2
R TR Ak e 9.7
Pro forma adjusted operating profit 200.9
ROATCE - o o  17.3%

_ . Note _
A : - TmLE
EBITDA S
Net debt to EBITDA
27.7 Dividend cover
- . e St DR o sae . [ESTIE L VN - ; =
e - e fote, _2022
b 107.5

Dividend cover
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

[T B

1.1 Basis of preparation

ez
Ter T g,

Financial modelling

T

Liquidity and financing position :
e Going concern basis
SR B 1.2 Basis of consclidation



1.6 Employee benefits
v estoog o
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1.2.a. New accounting standards adopted

R e E .oy

ES

1.3 Acquisitions
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1.4 Divestments
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

CONTINUED

1.7 Foreign currencies

o 1O DU TUIn
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1.9 Property, plant and equipment

=L TR

d} Goodwill - business combinations

15

e}

=)
MBIAIDA

1.1 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

i +

1ieday 316a1paag

a) Impairment of goodwil

a7 = T

1.10 Intangible assets TR AR

B2UDUIBAOLG 93pi0d10T)

a) Research and development costs g N R i o TE
T ey S TPV I cre o = m
Yoo 3
e e b) Impairment of other tangible and intangible assets 3
_ it I T et §
C - - E o
—
- .- . g
- o+
s ST o
3
3
t”) Computer software costs &

c) Acquired intangible assets ~ business comb

Q
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o
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SERPTEMBER 2022
CONIINUED

de poyables

%]

e

Gree

1.14 Investments (fair value through Other Comprehensive
Income)

Fizimn=etmerts gy
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Lleiate el el D
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T S imees et
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d) Put options h

e) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

[ .

1.17 Dividends
1.18 Share capital and reserves
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1.20 Accounting standards, interpretations and amendments

to published standards not yet effective
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1.21.3 Inventory provisions (estimate)
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PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AL LT FGSEFTEMBER 2022

2022 pler
Note £m ir

Fixed assets

Ihvesr wents 2 297.2 2607
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year

Lrents Ll'\-’,:ﬁd ij-_\_(_f-'_oiqln f\d_c‘(«ng, - 7 358

Creditors: nrmounts fc;llihg due within one year ' ' )

Arours ceed e -l-Br-zup aRaerton, ;\gs ’ - 1347
Net assets o 333.0 P
Copital and reserves ‘ 7

Culer o share conital ¢ 6.3 &2
Shaie [rertign 188.46 158 4

Profit ond loss acceunt - L 138.1 474
Total shoreholders’ equity B ] B 333.0 i

sterneris of Diploras FLL ond the roter o b o VB, man L p ool tbese toanid el sloiements cormaty T hber

cotoved by the Boore of Drectors o 27 Nover ter 2777 anc s

Chief Financial Officer

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ELDED 30 SEFTEMRBIR 27727

Totat

Share troe Retoreq shareholders’

copite [ €Cenings equity

hote £ i i im

ot - Ortcrer 2020 &3 188 & 504 245.3
Torren L ornneehens ce incomie = - - E5.6 69.6
D Fere b pag * - 5% (52.9)
Cemteert of i evearas < - G 0.5
L1020 Sertemibes ZC2T I TEE o RS 262.5
Toim Looenreehssnee egome - - 255 125.5
* - 582 {56.2)

: 1P 1.2
63 1886 1381 3330




NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Q) Accounting policies
a.1) Basis of accounting

- + o o
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MBIALBA
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a.2} Total Comprehensive Income
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a.3} Dividend income
L Tnpe aeev e i re e T z - 9
T3 Licends ERC L -
g
a.4) Diplorma PLC Employment Benefit Trust and employee share schemes a
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a.5) Auditors’ remuneration 2
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b) Directors’ and employees’ remuneration 2
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SERTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

d) Investments
2022
£m

DUUOTES T ITT L oDt e T OE el 2T O0ET

At 30 September 297.2

Al or sl STl e BRSSPt R R =
Faess oreonmy
e) Called up share capital
2022 2621 2022
Number ~ Numper £m

couod wAnoe en v gy Loz o oo, shres ot B e

At 30 September 124,615,170 AN LD 4.3

T e

LT ZT‘”:L]’)- of

a1
l

[
1
-

~




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

O
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Basis for opinion
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

Our audit approach

Overview

The scope of our audit

—

Key audit matters
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Key audnt motte: owe ou- ouoit gadrewsed the key gudit morier

Valuation of the intangibles for the R&G and Accuscience
acquisitions (Group)
- - c ‘ 3

o]

MBIAIBA
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aﬁ;g;&iaeio"f”invés;ments in subsidiaries -(Pa rent
Company)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

How we tailored the audit scope

saired ttie soope of Cup

e
=RRKEVAL S

oot the 2

Wil T

ate NN
Fiome

dto ge pertres

iowl mioes oo

joRrL i AR TEES daet

ELIITNG CLINpDT e s oL

e aacTof e

oot ootare T

U ted Dy T : > sb ov s padted oy

Ao e el £l el IeH Rel=1e e S E B i< SECCR G A R

Overall materiality

How we determined it

Rationale for benchmark Vapplied




Conclusions relating to going concern
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CONTINUE

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

Corporate governance statement
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Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial stotements

the financial statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

Companles Act 2006 exceptlon reportlng

T et Do nom ey Art FUOR e e e uTr Sl TN IR
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Christopher Burns (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for cmd on behalf of PrlcewaterhouseCoopers LLP
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SUBSIDIARIES OF DIPLOMA PLC
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SUBSIDIARIES OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Announcements (provisional dates) Shareholders’ enquiries

A SRR

Group Company Secretary and Registered Office

bA = e o e

Loy

- - R — S Fegereren roDadiann gtz ooy mo e
Fod Website
Thp or s w0Dob DL v ST 2 ani e

Annual Report & Accounts

e

Share Registrar
Computershare Investor Services PLC
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ADVISORS

Corporate Stockbrokers
Nurmis Securities

B LA i

Barclays Bank PLC

Independent Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

[T

Bankers
Barclays Bank PLC
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FIVE YEAR RECORD

Yeor erigec 30 Septemner

Revenue

2022
£m

1,012.8

Adjusted operating profit i 191.2°
et rarert yeny T Cnant el {11.6)
Adjusted profit before tax 179.6
L LT e ed 1 e s e (46.9)
= £ e et {3-2}
Profit beforetax 1295
o R e (34
Profitfortheyear 954
Capital structure
SR INN T T LE 3t 662.0 TIoll =L I L
N 6.2 47 M
=R M ~aL R N (41.7) RS . T
: 370.6 - -
e St (6.4) 7% £ c T
e Ee T T 29.6 I : N 4
TetE T Iy ot 38.2 o T z Tl
Reported trading capital employed 1,058.5 o 5 Lelk
Lo T Bt S NS SR TS B S NS
PRI CLETID T ’ 99.6 <
Zdjuqsted trc&ag?c:pi-tzi e;ﬁaoyed T T 115800 I
A S (113.8)
o Lo I = 56.4 o
1 he = S o - +
o 177.8 I
Freecashflow 7771204 T
Per ordinary share (p)
R 761 R L0 <.
- 107.5 ol HEI : -
= 96.7 [ R - s
s 53.8 Sl b N N
L 532 =7 <L = )
Tozemo 2.0 B - . P
Ratios Ty B -
St Rl T = SN 17.3 < < T
E = 15.6 B - -
o 18.9 - - B
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